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Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Macau) Limited
(“ICBC Macau”) is a group member of Industrial and
Commercial Bank of China Limited (“ICBC”) which holds
its 89.33% interest.

History

Since its incorporation in Macau in 1972, the former Seng
Heng Bank Limited (“SHB”) has been serving the local
customers and promoting the development in Macau for
37 years. On 28 August 2007, ICBC acquired 79.93%
shareholdings in the former SHB and formally completed
the share delivery on 28 January 2008, the former SHB then

became a member of ICBC Group.

The former Macau branch of Industrial and Commercial
Bank of China Limited (“Macau Branch”) was established in
May 2003 as one of ICBC’s overseas branches. It has enjoyed
rapid growth for six consecutive years since its entrance to

the Macau market.

On 11 July 2009, ICBC injected all net assets of the Macau
Branch into SHB with additional cash injection. Then SHB
was formally renamed as “Industrial and Commercial Bank
of China (Macau) Limited” (“ICBC Macau”). Upon the
transfer of all its assets and liabilities to ICBC Macau, the

commercial registration of Macau Branch was cancelled.

The establishment of ICBC Macau has facilitated the
integration of the brand and completmentary advantages
of ICBC’s institutions in Macau, significant enhancement
of capital strengths, evident expansion of its network and
channels, diversification of products and services, which
contributes to its leading position of business scale and

performance among local peers.
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Products and services

As at the end of 2009, ICBC Macau consisted of 3
subsidiaries, 14 branches, 3 Wealth Management Centers,
as well as a network of 86 ATMs located across Macau.
ICBC Macau leverages on ICBC’s strengths in its brand
name, products, clients, networks and industry-leading IT
advantages, and commits to providing comprehensive high

quality financial products and services to its clients:

Corporate loan, construction loan, project loan, syndicated
loan, trade financing and M&A financing, debt restructuring

and financial consultancy services;

Current account, savings deposit, mortgage loan, car loan,
education loan, personal loan; diverse wealth management
products such as stock trading, funds agency, insurance
agency, bond investment, foreign exchange investment and
Elite Club Account as well as structural products such as

redeemable time deposit and equity-linked notes;

Assets management, investment portfolio management and
pension fund management as well as relevant consultancy

services;

Settlement and cash management services such as
remittance, clearing, international settlement, E-banking and

credit card etc.

Subsidiaries

ICBC Macau has 3 wholly-owned subsidiaries: Industrial
and Commercial Bank of China (Macau) Capital Limited,
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Macau) Pension
Fund Management Company Limited and Seng Heng

Development Company Limited.

Prior to the change of name on 27 May 2009, Industrial
and Commercial Bank of China (Macau) Capital Limited
was formerly known as Seng Heng Capital Asia Limited,
which was established in May 1998 with a registered
capital of MOPS50 million. This subsidiary is committed to
providing fund management services and customized long-
term investment strategy consultancy services in Macau to

institutional and individual clients.
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As renamed on 27 May 2009, Industrial and Commercial
Bank of China (Macau) Pension Fund Management Company
Limited was formerly known as Seng Heng Pension Fund
Management Company Limited, which was established in
June 2003 with a registered capital of MOP30 million. This
subsidiary is the first and only professional pension fund
management company approved to be established under
the new legislations, and provides a comprehensive range
of pension fund management services in accordance with
the legislation established for pension fund management

regulations promulgated by the Macau government.

Incorporated on 10 January 1997 in Hong Kong, Seng
Heng Development Company Limited holds property and

specializes in the financial and investment market research.

ICBC Macau adheres to the organic unity between its
performance of economic and social responsibility. ICBC
Macau has established its image as a responsible leading
bank in Macau by giving support to economic and social
developments, environmental and resources protection, and

participating in social welfare activities etc.
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« 384T The Banker

2009 47 b i foe £ SRAT (A8 58 JULAR 158
The Bank of the Year in Macau 2009 (Award for 9th consecutive year)

BRER 4Bk Global Finance

2009 478 [ 1 i 5 SR AT R AE SR N 47 1 58
The Best Bank in Macau 2009 (Award for 6th consecutive year)

(A 4Rl A SE World Finance Magazine

2009 45 W b i S5 A SR AT
The Best Bank in Macau 2009

o H1 [ SR FF W China UnionPay Hong Kong
2009 47 [ W B bR B4

Outstanding Performance for Merchant Acquiring Business Award in Macau
2009

o #EpEF W VISA Hong Kong

2009 4B [ R 341 22 e e 82
Highest Gold Card Average Spending Award in Macau 2009

2009 45 W [ 5 R ARSI 204 R 5ok 82
Highest Growth in Cardholders’ Overseas Spending Award in Macau 2009
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The directors of the Bank during the year were:

Mr. Zhu Xiaoping
Mr. Shen Xiaoqi
Mr. Huen Wing Ming, Patrick
Mr. Liu Yagan
Mr. Tong Chi Kin
Mr. Wu Zongxuan
(appointed on 13 July 2009,
resigned on 25 March 2010)
Mr. Ji Jingyu
(appointed on 25 March 2009)
Ms. Nie Changwen
(appointed on 13 July 2009)
Mr. Yu Hong
(resigned on 13 July 2009)
Mr. Qiao Jinsheng
(resigned on 13 July 2009)
Mr. Francisco Luis Murteira Nabo
(resigned on 13 July 2009)
Dr. So Shu Fai, Ambrose
(resigned on 13 July 2009)

SINGLE SUPERVISOR
Mr. Chui Sai Cheong

(representative of CSC & Associados — Sociedade de Auditores)

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Zheng Kai

(appointed on 26 March 2010)
Mr. Li Zhigang

(resigned on 26 March 2010)

AUDITORS
Ernst & Young
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A LEGAL ADVISERS
AP I KA Dr. Jorge Neto Valente
VP JHE 9 KA i Dr. Saldanha Henrique
I BROK A A Dr. Leong Hon Man
vk 1 ¢ 23 REGISTERED OFFICE
WL ACHR G B 555 5% 18/F, ICBC Tower
W 5 Macau Landmark
TSR (L) ey 18 48 555, Avenida da Amizade, Macau
WA BN B SENIOR MANAGEMENT
WY W RGBT Chairman, Managing Director & Executive Director
RIBEF A5k Mr. Zhu Xiaoping
RIS ~ T AR e AT e Vice-Chairman, CEO & Executive Director
VeI e R Mr. Shen Xiaoqi
R &R S Ky e Vice-Chairman & Executive Director
K B Se A Mr. Huen Wing Ming, Patrick
AT Al Deputy CEOs
Wk r e 2R Mr. Cheng Wing Fai, Patrick
GBS Mr. Lui Kwok Tai, Stephen
o Bkt Ms. Lin Zi
SR SEE Mr. Yung Chun Fai, Dickie
7 I 5 A (A i A ) Mr. Li Zhigang (also Chief Risk Officer)
g Chief Officers
TRER S (RE ) Mr. Cheung Kam Man, Tony (Chief Investment Officer)
BRIBEES &+ (BB A ) Ms. Chen Xiaoling, Emma (Chief Financial Officer)
BRIk e A (£ A ) Mr. Chen Limiao (Chief Operating Officer)
TR S A (B A ) Mr. Huen Hon Kwong, Alfred (Chief IT Officer)
(R ZFFIAF/NHILHZAE) (appointed on 9 September 2009)
PRSI Sedk: (FE FEHHE) Mr. Chan Kam Lun, Felix (Chief Retail Banking Officer)

(R —F—F4F - H /) HZE) (appointed on 8 February 2010)
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We always bear in mind our responsibilities to customers,
shareholders, employees and the community. Through
our expertise in asset and risk management, we aim at
pursuing for the bank and our customers better returns
that are achieved at risk comparable basis. Leveraging
on our advanced information technology and the resulted
product, business and mechanism innovations, we aim

at building up the bank as an excellent leading bank in

Macau.
2008 2009 i nIncrease/
HEEMOP BWPIMOP  (J#A Decrease)
H#Tmillion T #tmillion 4%
SERERA) Profit for the Year 274 459 68
JBE AR 7 Shareholders’ Equity 2,674 3,633 36
B Total Assets 40,423 51,822 28
2008 2009 B /mIncrease/
HWEEMOP MWPEEMOP (YA Decrease)
H#JCmillion  H#&JCmillion A%
BRI Operating Income 774 918 19
I Operating Expenses (310) (340) 10
11 B3 0 488 445 i Operating Profit before
Z AR Impairment Allowances 464 578 25
W EZ Impairment Allowances
VRAE R for Impaired Assets (158) (3D (80)
=BT 3738 Repurchase of Lehman
15 55 [l i Brothers Minibonds — (19) AN FHN/A
Tt il 2 ) Profit before Tax 306 528 73
g Income Tax Expense (32) (69) 116
SFERERA Profit for the Year 274 459 68
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Key Figures for 2009

Following the stabilization and then turnaround of the

global and Macau economies, the Bank recorded improved

operating results with the profit after tax increasing by 68%
to MOP459 million.

Shareholders’ equity increased by 36% to MOP3,633 million.

Loans and advances to customers increased by 54% to
MOP37,116 million.

Deposits from customers increased by 16% to MOP42,620

million.

Total assets increased by 28% to MOP51,822 million.

T AE Five-Year Summary
WM E #CMOP million
2005 2006 2007 2008 CAGR*
AR BF 5 o BLARA T
Profit after Tax Former Seng Heng Bank 243 312 326
BRI T 274 459 15%
Former ICBC Macau Branch 16 62 44
RN V& T 5 A BLERA T
Loans and Advances to ~ Former Seng Heng Bank 7,539 9,745 10,435
Customers BRI AT 24,057 37,116 44%
Former ICBC Macau Branch 1,096 1,609 6,151
EIREER 5 o LR A T
Deposits from Customers Former Seng Heng Bank 19,455 22,587 26,950
BRI AT 36,742 42,620 18%
Former ICBC Macau Branch 2,419 4,075 5,181
G A 5 ok LR A T
Total Assets Former Seng Heng Bank 21,479 25,387 29,365
JRR M 54T 40,423 51,822 21%
Former ICBC Macau Branch 3,079 4,968 7,858

: CAGR=4EME A #RE R Compound Annual Growth Rate
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Profit after Tax Deposits from Customers
500 50,000
40,000
£ 8
E E 30,000
=] 5
s s
R R
# =
i E 20000
£ £
= = 10,000
2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 0 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
% R S BGR e A
Loans and Advances to Customers Total Assets
40,000 60,000
35,000
50,000
5 30000 5
Z T 40000
Z 25000 s
: :
Z 20000 30,000
R R
= =
= 15,000 im
Iy = 20,000
§ 10,000 %
10,000
5,000
0™ 2008 2006 2007 2008 2009 0 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
R W EBRMAT [0 JERBERAT  RIRM AT

Former Seng Heng Bank Former ICBC Macau Branch Former Seng Heng Bank + Former ICBC Macau Branch
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2009 is the beginning of a new era for the development of
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Macau) Limited
(“ICBC Macau”).

On 11 July 2009, the former Seng Heng Bank and the
Macau Branch of ICBC officially integrated to form ICBC
Macau with the approval of the China Banking Regulatory
Commission and the Macau SAR Government. ICBC Macau
becomes the largest locally registered bank in Macau and
also ranks second in terms of assets and liabilities scale
amongst all the 26 local banks. ICBC holds a share stake of
89.33% in ICBC Macau. With the full support from the major
shareholder ICBC, since its establishment, ICBC Macau
has strived to accelerate business development, deepen the
collaboration with branches or affiliates in Mainland and
overseas, and enhance operating performance by leveraging
on ICBC’s competitive edge in its network, brand, funding
and technology, while implementing the development
strategy of “Basing on Macau, Radiating to the Mainland,
Expanding in Neighbouring Regions and Extending to
Portuguese-speaking Countries”.

As at the end of 2009, the total assets of the Bank amounted
to MOPS51.8 billion, representing an increase of 28%, and
total liabilities amounted to MOP48.2 billion, representing
an increase of 28%. The deposit balance amounted to
MOP42.6 billion, representing an increase of MOPS5.9
billion as compared to preceding financial year and the loan
outstanding amounted to MOP37.1 billion, representing
an increase of MOPI13.1 billion as compared to preceding
financial year. Meanwhile, with the NPL outstanding and
ratio continued to maintain at a relatively low level and
loan provisions fully provided, the risk resistance capacity
of the Bank was significantly enhanced. In 2009, the Bank
recorded a profit after tax of MOP459 million, while the
weighted average ROE and average ROA were 14.41% and
0.98% respectively.

The Bank successfully maintained outstanding business
performance during the year of integration and transition
and continued to gain recognition from many renowned
international financial media and agencies, including being
awarded as the Best Bank in Macau for the Year 2009 by
both Global Finance and The Banker.

Moving forward, the Bank will further deepen its root
in the local market of Macau. In accordance with Macao
Government’s unified planning, the Bank will continue to
strengthen its services for the local infrastructure, major
projects, social welfare and the local residents, facilitate the
transitions and structure adjustments of Macao economy,
and contribute to support Macau’s economic development
and social prosperity.
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In 2009, the Bank inherited and carried forward the fine
tradition of ICBC in proactively integrating into the Macau
community, sincerely performing its social responsibilities
as a corporate citizen, continuing to operate in strict
compliance with applicable laws and regulations, assertively
supporting the local economy, foreign economic and trade
cooperation and social welfare development in Macau, and
coordinating with other parties to promote a harmonious

society in Macau.

The Bank has been actively committed to taking up its
economic responsibilities to promote the social development.
In 2009, the Bank actively cooperated with the various
measures promulgated by the Macau SAR in face of the
financial crisis and cogently supported the moderately
diversified development of the Macau economy. Facing
the impact of the financial crisis and from the perspective
of long-term development, the Bank strengthened the
collaboration with local enterprises to tide over the hard
time in providing financing and service facilities to major
local projects and foreign economic and trade cooperation
projects. With the objectives of better facilitating the
development of small and medium enterprises to cogently
support their growth, and improving the housing condition
of Macau residents to enhance their quality of life, the
Bank proactively explored the establishment of specialized
institutions to enhance its service and efficiency and cater
for the demand for financial services by the SMEs and
local residents. In 2009, the Bank recorded a 55% increase
in the amount of loans, representing historical highs in
terms of both the total loans and the magnitude of increase,

sustaining the economic recovery of Macau.

The Bank remains strictly observing its compliance
responsibility to operate its business in a secure and
trustworthy manner. The Bank strictly complies with
various laws and financial supervision regulations, observes
international practice in daily operation, complies with
the market-oriented business principles, and adheres to a
legitimate, compliant and honest operation. In 2009, the

Bank continued to maintain a good record of safe operation.
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The Bank is aware of and upholds its future-oriented
environmental responsibilities. The Bank has always
stressed the importance of reinforcing the environmental
protection awareness of its staff through promoting and
leading its staff to participate in constructing a conservatory
bank and a conservatory community. In 2009, the Bank
implemented the green purchasing policy and gave priority
to green environment-friendly products to reduce the
carbon emission; strived to lower the energy consumption
by adopting electronization and other means and raise the
standard of green office; kept expanding e-banking and
other new service channels and optimizing the portfolio
of electronic products, and hereby significantly conserved
social resources and material resources, and provided
customers with low-carbon financial services featuring time
saving, convenience and high efficiency, thus creating the

harmonious coexistence of the human beings and the nature.

The Bank has proactively strengthened its responsibility
for the all-around development of its staff, and has always
upheld the “people-oriented” philosophy to actively explore
and build up a comprehensive staff incentive system,
and to care for the physical and mental health of its staff.
During the financial crisis and its integration process, the
Bank has committed to “no lay-offs and no salary-cut” to
support employment in society and genuine protection of the
employees’ rights and interests. It has also actively organized
its staff to participate in physical exercise and cultural
activities in order to enrich their leisure life, promote
their integration into society, and enhance the mutual
understanding among staff and with other communities. The
Bank highly accentuated the protection of employees’ rights
and interests and has step up the staff training spending to
provide the staff with broader career spaces and to promote
the common growth of staff and the Bank. Those trainings
have significantly enhanced the personal quality and the
space for career development of the employees, who in turn

would form invaluable assets for the Bank’s future growth.
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The Bank is devoted to community affairs and ready to
shoulder its social responsibilities as a corporate citizen.
Upholding the philosophy of depending on and servicing
different social strata in Macau, as well as contributing
to the Macau society, the Bank appreciates the local
society’s support, takes the initiative to perform its social
responsibilities as a corporate citizen and proactively
participates in welfare affairs. Upon the bank integration
and establishment of ICBC Macau, the Bank entered
into scholarship donation agreements with University of
Macau, Macau Polytechnic Institute and Macao University
of Science and Technology respectively, with the aim to
encourage young students to strive for excellence and
improvement and to support the development of the cultural
and education sector in Macau. The Bank has actively
taken part in charity affairs in Macau and has been actively
participating in and making donations to “The Walk for a
Million” organized by Macao Daily News Readers’ Charity
Fund all along the years. The Bank also makes generous
donations to the Welfare Association of Macao Federation of
Trade Unions, Tung Sin Tong Charitable Society of Macau
and other charity organizations to express its concern for
the vulnerable minority group and the commitment to
performing its determined responsibility of improving the
people’s well-being. In 2009, apart from actively supporting
the social welfare affairs in Macau such as the cultural
and education industry and charity sector, the Bank has
also actively participated in fund-raising and disaster
relief activities as part of its persistent effort to uphold
the spirit of humanity. Upon learning about the typhoon
disaster in Taiwan, ICBC Macau initiated its staff to make
donations to the Taiwan people and jointly operated a special
account with Macau Red Cross to handle contributions and
remittances from all sectors of society free of charge. With
practical actions, ICBC Macau presents a corporate image
of “Rooting in Macau, Developing Corporate Culture and
Building a Harmonious Society Together” in the Macau

society.
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In 2009, governments around the world promulgated an
array of economic stimulus policies and large-scale rescue
plans to respond to the financial crisis and managed to drive
the global economy back to a more stable and recovering
trend. However, the domestic economy differed greatly from
one country to another, and the world economic recovery is
still highly uncertain, especially when the sovereign debt
crisis in some Euro countries persists. Against a background
of amplified fluctuations in the international financial
market, widened oscillations in the major currencies and
the persisted low interest rate level, the expectation for
economic recovery triggered a robust bounce off the bottom
for the stock markets around the world and escalating
commodity prices. However with abundant liquidity on the
market under “zero interest rate” and quantitative easing
money policy, governments around the world are facing the
dilemma between maintaining the economic stimulus plans
and suppressing inflation.

Subsequent to the significant recession during first and
second quarters, the Macau economy benefited from the
recovery of the global economy from the turmoil and
regained a vigorous upward momentum again in the second
half of the year, resulting in a real growth of 1.3% in
Macau’s GDP for the year 2009. The rebound was mainly
driven by the strong growth in the tourism industry, private
consumption, government expenditure and exports. On the
other side of the lens, investment level was precariously
low, and the number of both visiting tourists and property
sales have not returned to the pre-crisis level. Following
the implementation of the State’s “Outline of the Plan for
the Reform and Development of the Pearl River Delta”,
accelerated economic integration among Guangdong, Hong
Kong and Macau becomes imminent. Large infrastructure
projects and major local projects are all set to commence,
and investment will form a major driving force for the
growth of the Macau economy.

Withstanding the financial crisis in 2009 the banking
industry in Macau is enjoying a more positive market
sentiment and showing a trend of gradual growth momentum
in general. In 2009, the regulatory authorities promulgated
a series of major policies and measures, which include new
requirements in relation to bank wealth management and
asset management businesses, trials for RMB settlement
of cross-border trade and the future implementation of the
New Basel Capital Accord in the future. All these will bring
about challenges along with opportunities to the future
development of the banking industry. The overall outlook for
the financial services market in Macau is more optimistic
than last year.
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AL B BEE ST S Corporate Banking & Investment Banking

ARAT K D) ¥ E b T 8 o O B R A R RORT IR The Bank focused on developing the local market through
o EmpARRE RN MEHE HIMEMNE continuous launch of new products and services, and
SEEAERBE - BRITBA R SRER > BEELR actively expanding the wholesale and investment banking

A E BT A B o AT AE SR I Bk 8 E ARG businesses such as loan syndication, finance lease, trade
o EB BB R RENMIEN - ZFFGE+ finance and fund settlement, in order to increase its share
o ASAT 43 B8 19 A B 4 B o B h BRI R on the loan market. The Bank maintained its active presence
GANREREEER » BEPWAINE PR A o — on the syndicated loan market and extended its business
BRIV » AAT A W] S5 AR R AR R AR DA e to Oceanian and Africa. In October 2009, by leveraging
B A5 S O SR N L R B R - &P &S on ICBC’s advantage in domestic-overseas collaboration,
W~ SEBSSEIR IR M 2 oC B R o the Bank successfully launched the cross-border RMB
trade settlement business to reduce the exchange cost for
customers. In 2009, the Bank recorded significant y-o-y
increases in corporate loans and deposits, as well as the
volume of international settlement. These are paralleled
by the diversified development in its customer portfolio,

business scope and service coverage.

F 0 U T WL AT PR B Retail Banking & Wealth Management

AT A Bl 1B T SRAT B R B R B A A B Leveraging ICBC’s advantages in brand and technology, the
LAEETECE » BA B EIR A RAER - 2 Bank has realized fast growth of its retail banking business
BEBR PR - through optimizing the network layout, integrating business

resources and continuously launching new products.

AR 6% BT A4 - BB SRAT RO - B The Bank keeps improving the network of full-function
BEBPLD - BEEMATPOEE FRITESE branches, self-service banking centers, wealth management

RAoZHEEES BRI EAF PG > B#ILEF centers, telephone banking and other E-banking channels,
SREMBEEER > BERFFRAFEENL S — 3R in order to fully explore its channel advantages, effectively
o broaden its customer base, optimize the multi-tiered

customer service system for the provision of professional and

one-stop services to its customers.

ARAT — SR AL N BRI AT o S B A R % 4 The Bank is committed to enhancing innovation of personal
W M EEMEEEN HEMERFEEBE wealth management products and has continually broadened
AR o AATHEA SR L A HE > B3 2

the business scope in popularizing specific exclusive
products and channels’ building. The Bank has assigned

specific wealth managers and professional management
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teams to tailor-make the most suitable wealth management
solutions for medium- to high-end customers. As at the end
of 2009, the Bank has set up 3 Wealth Management Centers

devoted to serving high-end wealth management customers.

The Bank is equipped with technologically advanced and
powerful stock trading system. In 2009, the online securities
trading business obtained new breakthroughs, whereas
the stock trading business leaped forward with significant

increases in transaction volume.

Treasury Market & Fund Management Business

The Bank is actively and meticulously participated in the
financial market, such as those of foreign exchange market,
money market, bond market and derivatives market, to carry
out various trading on proprietary and brokerage trading
with diversified instruments. In 2009, the Bank launched
the new forward foreign exchange products and RMB Non-
Deliverable Forward (NDF) products. In response to the
latest market condition, the Bank timely adjusted its strategy
in bond investment and strictly controlled its foreign
exchange exposure, and so further brought the market risk

under control.

The pension fund management business of the Bank also
set on a sound trend of development. In 2009, the member
of pension fund plans and the pension fund assets under

management both achieved stable growth.

Financial Institutions Services

In the continuous pursuit of fortifying the cooperation
with its counterparts in the financial industry, the Bank
has actively expanded its network of correspondent
banks to consolidate the basis and broaden the scope
of cooperation. As at the end of 2009, the Bank has
established correspondent relationship with over 300 banks

and developed a fast, smooth and comprehensive global
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clearing and service network. In 2009, the Bank achieved
breakthroughs in financial institution services and improved
the services for banks, insurance companies and other
financial institutions through more in-depth cooperation
in various areas including assets custody and agency
remittance, which in turn enhanced business diversification
of the Bank.

Bank Card Business

The Bank accelerated the innovation and promotion of bank
card products, strived to enhance the brand recognition and
devoted to provide superior and efficient financial services

to merchants and cardholders.

In 2009, the bank card business continued to maintain strong
growth with satisfactory increases in the number of cards
issued and the amount of merchant acquiring business,
which further consolidated its market position and enhanced

its brand image.

The Bank’s e-Age Card and Elite Club Card integrate the
functions of UnionPay Card and Jetco Card in providing
customers multiple services including personal payment,
investment and wealth management in one card. In 2009,
the Bank’s UnionPay POS acquiring business once again
recorded a robust increase for over 50%, which set a new
record in the history of the Bank and sustained its leading

position in the industry.

E-banking

The Bank has continuously expanded its business channels
and optimized its service system. The Bank launched more
self-service terminals while optimizing the layout of self-
service facilities. As at the end of 2009, the number of ATMs
increased to 86, representing an increase of 12 machines or
16.22% as compared to the beginning of 2009. Furthermore,
all ATMs have joined the Hong Kong-Macau Jetco and China

UnionPay networks.
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The Bank provides “EasiPhone Banking” for its customers
to remotely have personal banking and wealth management

business transacted over the phone.

The Bank leverages on industry-leading technological
advantages to launch a powerful internet banking system
to provide customers with a wide range of safe, fast and
convenient electronic banking services. The Bank has
continuously expanded its business channels and optimized

its service system.
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TRBIUE > B BRI AR SE WA R AR i fE In 2009, the global economy gradually stepped out
Jo] P 4 ol AE ISR Bh BB N BB E 5 AR > B Rl of recession and moved toward recovery, whereas
REFEMTUR BRI R W B R the international financial industry broke away from
TN MR AR D) G A > 488 A T A 4 il R < T JRL e A fluctuations and returned to stability. However, the reform
i of the multilateral financial system and adjustments of the
quantitative easing money policy got caught in a dilemma,
deflation and inflation pressure co-existed, while prospects
and risks of economic recovery and financial improvements

also existed together.

A AT N 5 B T R SRAT AR I B R Al R F AR AT R The Bank will accord with ICBC Group’s global development
7 ) A RS R M B OR 5 [ o7 R IR ~ RS Hh ~ 3R R layout and its Board’s overall strategic requirements of
B EMEERER ] B BREREEE - AFE “Basing on Macau, Radiating to the Mainland, Expanding
BMESEBEZREH > ERPHEE - WEF B in Neighboring Regions and Extending to Portuguese-
B BRAKF R AIHTRE ) S 5 U BURR R A o speaking Countries”, with the aim to focus on the three core

businesses segments of retail banking, corporate banking
and treasury business, and to take a long stride ahead in
customer base, service mode, corporate governance and

ability to innovate.

JRM TR —FAE S LEEE » WY o RITHFH% Looking forward to 2010, it will have a brilliant prospect
PR R A LT B TS R SRAT I PR - although it is a long road to go. In pursuit of the objective
PREHRRE s WELBME > WERMESR > BT to become an excellent leading bank in Macau, the Bank
e AT BANIRBE B BTG > AWM will accelerate business development, improve financial
F 0T W R AR B R B R - services, build the brand image, fulfill the corporate

social responsibility, devote to serving the local economic

and social development in Macau, and make a greater

contribution to a better tomorrow of Macau.
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The directors hereby present their report together with the
audited financial statements of Industrial and Commercial
Bank of China (Macau) Limited (the “Bank™) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2009.

Principal activities

The principal activities of the Bank are the provision of
banking, financial and other related services in Macau.
There were no significant changes in the Bank’s principal
activities during the year. The principal activities of the
Bank’s subsidiaries are set out in Note 13 to the financial

statements.

Results and dividends

The profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2009 and the financial status of the Group at that date are set

out in the financial statements on Pages 26 to 97.

The directors do not recommend the payment of any
dividend for the year (2008: Nil).

Share capital

There was no movement in the Bank’s authorised share
capital. Details of movements in the issued share capital
during the year are set out in Note 19 to the financial

statements.
Property, plant and equipment
Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the

Group during the year are set out in Note 14 to the financial

statements.
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Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during
the year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity.

Auditors

Ernst & Young Auditores retire and a resolution for their
reappointment as the auditors of the Bank will be proposed
at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Chairman
Zhu XiaoPing

Macau
26 March 2010
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To the shareholder of ICBC Macau
(Incorporated in Macau with limited liability)

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Macau) Limited
(the “Bank”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on
pages 27 to 98, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 December 2009, and the
consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial
statements

The directors of the Bank are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with the Financial Reporting
Standards promulgated by the Macao Special Administrative
Region (“Macao Financial Reporting Standards™) and, where
applicable, the International Financial Reporting Standards.
This responsibility includes designing, implementing and
maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and
the true and fair presentation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies;
and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the
circumstances.

Auditors’ responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. Our report is made solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of
engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report.
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We conducted our audit in accordance with Auditing
Standards and the Technical Auditing Standards of the
Macao Special Administrative Region and the International
Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors
consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
and true and fair presentation of the financial statements
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the directors, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and
fair view of the financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2009 and of its financial performance and its cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with the Macao
Financial Reporting Standards and, where applicable, the
International Financial Reporting Standards.

Dilys Chau, Registered Auditor
Ernst & Young

Macao
26 March 2010
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%8ty Financial Statements

E P EE#E Consolidated Income Statement

BEZZZNFETA=ZT—HILEE

Year ended 31 December 2009

2009 2008
a3 WM T L WP ToT
Notes MOP’000 MOP’000
(F31)
(restated)
1) B A INTEREST INCOME 1,161,554 1,540,969
FEZH INTEREST EXPENSE (628,141) (810,923)
533,413 730,046
HAb B WA T3 OTHER OPERATING INCOME,
NET 4 384,600 43,932
BEBA OPERATING INCOME 918,013 773,978
BEMX OPERATING EXPENSES 5 (340,253) (309,873)
R 00 5% L 58 i 2 OPERATING PROFIT BEFORE
GEX IMPAIRMENT ALLOWANCES 577,760 464,105
WA R 2 A IMPAIRMENT ALLOWANCES
FOR IMPAIRED ASSETS 6 (31,348) (158,107)
o D 5 O 2 R AR A 2 REPURCHASE OF LEHMAN
BROTHERS MINIBONDS (18,317) —
1% iy 28 PROFIT BEFORE TAX 528,095 305,998
i BB INCOME TAX EXPENSE 7 (69,585) (31,857)
ARAEJE B A PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 458,510 274,141
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G5 AW # 3R Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

BREZZZFNAET A= —HIEEE
Year ended 31 December 2009

2009 2008
WM T L WP FoT
MOP’000 MOP’000
(FE3)
(restated)
AAE B RA PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 458,510 274,141
oAl f A W2 OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME
BT 2 A R E M CHANGE IN FAIR VALUE
W) RESERVE OF AVAILABLE-
FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 100,905 (90,116)
BLIH B X TAX EXPENSE (1,100) (1,281)
NG RN OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
(E4H) > CHBRBLE INCOME/(LOSS) FOR THE
YEAR, NET OF TAX 99,805 (91,397)
AR B Al A A A TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME FOR THE YEAR 558,315 182,744
B A SRATRESS RN ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY

HOLDERS OF THE BANK 558,315 182,744




28

o TR SR AT (M) B 4 A BR 2§ INDUSTRIAL AND COMMERCIAL BANK OF CHINA (MACAU) LIMITED
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GO B ARULZE Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

SR AZ T
31 December 2009

2009 2008
Kt WM W ToT
Notes MOP’000 MOP’000
(F31)

(restated)
a3 ASSETS
EAE B A AT i IF] S A5 R Cash and balances with banks 1,349,957 2,679,937
A2 Tl 4 A BB A K Deposits with monetary authority 1,001,825 447,752
7€ WA ik [ S 3108 Placements with other banks 8 1,580,739 1,924,079
MR AR WA {62 Financial assets at fair value through

L RlE profit or loss 10 5,254,279 7,979,310
7 4 R Derivative financial assets 24 22,096 7,900
& PRk M Bk Loans and advances to customers 9 37,116,005 24,056,716
WAL R Available-for-sale investments 12 1,877,952 1,542,371
R WS e T e L A Receivables and other assets 290,298 197,569
FEHWHKE Held-to-maturity investments 11 3,013,960 1,267,193
LE B Y &L Property, plant and equipment 14 244,973 251,877
EAAE/E S Investment property 15 58,861 59,578
R RE B IE B A Deferred tax assets 18 10,665 8,476
BREME Total assets 51,821,610 40,422,758
1 LIABILITIES
GE 24 Deposits from other banks 16 2,929,391 613,390
BEER Deposits from customers 17 42,619,709 36,742,396
A 4 b B A Derivative financial liabilities 24 20,557 33,990
Hofl £ 1 Other liabilities 504,394 290,445
DB B E 5 MM A4 Debt issued and borrowed funds 2,001,290 —
REAT BT 1586 Income tax payable 113,227 64,437
R E A I £ 1 Deferred tax liabilities 18 — 3,630
AERH Total liabilities 48,188,568 37,748,288
B2 EQUITY
A Share capital 19 282,121 258,695
it 4 Reserves 3,350,921 2,415,775
RE 75 HH A Total equity 3,633,042 2,674,470
RE2S A% K A Total equity and liabilities 51,821,610 40,422,758
RWET W HE
Zhu Xiaoping Shen Xiaoqi
HFE AE TR R T

Chairman Vice Chairman and CEO
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GO B3R Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

BREZZZFNAET A= —HIEEE
Year ended 31 December 2009

F] &
Reserves
st e wHEh T
Bk AEEE RBEM R i Riie  REEA it
Assigned Investment
Share capital from Share Legal  revaluation Other Retained
capital  Head Office premium reserve reserve reserves profits Total

WRRTE WFRTE BARTL RARTC RMRTX ORMETR RMETR RMRTRX
MOP'OOD  MOP'OOD  MOP'OOD  MOPO0  MOPOO0  MOPOO0  MOP'OO0  MOP'00O

(Hitw)
(Notes (i)
REZFNE—A—H At Janvary 2008 as restated
(&) 150,000 401,655 — 154,873* 04T 15300 1,650,235%  2,494311
REEAGHEANE  Total comprehensive income for the
(%) year as restated - — - - (91,397) - 274,141 182,744

ARBRMBELE  Transfer from retained profits to

Tl (E51) legal reserve as restated - - — 734 — - (7134) -
RESERMEMEE  Appropriation to other reserves

el (E5) under AMCM requirement as

restated — — — — — 180,028 (180,028) —
JEE 98 (51 Exchange realignment as restated — — — — — — (2,585) (2,585)
REZZNEFZH  At31 December 2008 and at

=t-HR 1 January 2009 (before

ZERAE-A—H  integration)

(B4 150,000 401,655 — 155,607* (69,150)% 295329 1741,029%  2,674470
EREA Reorganization during the year 108,695 (401,655 290425 90,024 — (90,04) 2,535 —
B0 Issue of shares 23426 — 376,831 — — — — 400,257
RO Al Total comprehensive income for the

il year — — — — 99,805 — 458,510 558,315
R Transfer from legal reserve to

REEA retained profits — — - (89.470) - - 89,470 -
RESERMEMEE  Appropriation to other reserves

Hlbffie under AMCM requirement - — — — — 156,744 (156,744) —
RERRNE At 31 December 2009

+-H=+—H 282,121 — 067,256 156,161* 30,655* 362,049%  2134800% 3,633,042

* SRR AR AWM P AEATES * These reserve accounts represented the consolidated reserves
ATABELTF(CRR)\E : @M+ —E=T of MOP2,683,665,000 (2008: MOP2,125,350,000).

T =EAHED) Z RS -

&t Note:

(i) R GEMEMER(&ER D) 2R REH (i) The Group complies with Monetary Authority of Macao’s
T 308 1 AR B R o AL o DA AR DA A (“AMCM”) requirement to maintain impairment allowances
R 20 IR e A 4 ) T R S AR AT 2 L A in excess of the Group’s collective impairment allowances
e RZFZRAETZA=ZT—H » HAbfifaad required under International Financial Reporting Standards
ZHME RN T HAER L T u (SRR through the appropriation of retained profits to other
WP LT NI =T HE T BeEwRE reserves. As at 31 December 2009, MOP345,072,000 (2008:
Ty R A 4 EEZ I o MOP278,352,000) was included in other reserves which is not

distributable under AMCM’s requirement.
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EOB 4 B3E Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

BREZZZFNAET A= —HIEEE
Year ended 31 December 2009

2009 2008
Wit WWTE AL
Notes MOP’000 MOP*000
(%)
(restated)
KABBEH SRR CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
BB A Profit before tax 528,095 305,998
R Adjustments for:
ik Depreciation 5 28,264 27,389
RETHEREZ B BBA Dividend income from available-for-sale
investments 4 (1,220) (4,534)
WRELED R AREZ Dividend income from financial assets at fair

SRNEREZ R BB value through profit or loss 4 — (153)
HEDE - BERRHEZ Losses/(gains) on disposal of items of property,

lEt,/ (Heds) plant and equipment 4 1,596 (20)
RARHEFMHREZ IR Amortisation of discount and premium of held-

i Y to-maturity investments 1,786 4,530
REHETHERHEREZ Net losses/(gains) from disposal of available-

B/ (es) S for-sale investments 9,144 (9,109)
RELERZIMAREL Net losses from on disposal of held-to-maturity

izt investments = 15,592
BEEB AR ARG Net (gains)/losses from financial assets at fair

SEEZ () /TEREH value through profit or loss (92,601) 74,101
% PRk e B 2 YA R Impairment allowance on loans and advances

to customers 6 31,706 22,461

PR B H B Z Wfa Impairment allowances on held-to-maturity
investments 6 — 135,646
506,770 571,901

FAZMAREMZ % Decrease in placements with other banks with

A original maturity longer than three months — 65,000
MERRER R E Z W Decrease in treasury bills classified as held-to-

WA maturity investments — 1,749,849
PR S B Increase in loans and advances to customers (13,090,995) (7,471,270)
JRE N R M LAt (Increase)/decrease in receivables and other assets

(i) /WA (92,729) 1,410,738
AR £ LR WA R Z 42 Decrease/(increase) in financial assets at fair

BaEWD/ () value through profit or loss 2,817,632 (2,307,909)
R/ (W) Increase/(decrease) in deposits from other banks 2,316,001 (1,529,181)
FP M Increase in deposits from customers 5,877,313 4,611,091
HAu g 8,/ () Increase/(decrease) in other liabilities 213,949 (54,132)
MEETENEREZZMA®%  Increase in treasury bills maturing beyond

B i 275 3 months classified as available-for-sale

investments — (40)
BRSO BB BB Decrease in available-for-sale investment other

than treasury bills — 124,507
& m e (WD) (Decrease)/increase in derivative financial

liabilities (13,433) 27,202

fikemgEz G /W (Increase)/decrease in derivative financial assets (14,196) 4930
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EHB 4 BEFE Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (# continuea)

BREZZZFNAET A= —HIEEE
Year ended 31 December 2009

2009 2008
Wit WWTE AL
Notes MOP’000 MOP’000
(%)
(restated)
BTN B4 Cash used in operations (1,479,688) (2,797,314)
[ ville v Profit tax paid (26,644) (48,502)
BEEH N BT FH Net cash flows used in operating activities (1,506,332) (2,845,816)
RABEEE < B R CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
KA B B Dividend income from available-for-sale
investments 4 1,220 4,534
REBBEGARPARMEZ Dividend income from financial assets at fair
SR M BB value through profit or loss 4 = 153
il ATk A Purchases of available-for-sale investments (832,032) —
HETTH R 2 W s Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale
investments 80,843 279,963
AR 2 M HBE Purchases of held-to-maturity investments (1,688,245) (339,900)
AREFFEBN A B B I Proceeds from redemption and retirement upon
Bl W g maturity of held-to-maturity investments 739,691 1,215,418
HEYE R RRMEEA B  Proceeds from disposal of items of property, plant
and equipment 86 332
TEE - ARG MR Purchases of items of property, plant and
equipment (23,263) (21,953)
B2 JEHE 37 Additions of deferred expenditure — (12,556)
REEH (R) /i Net cash flows (used in)/from investing activities
BAWEFH (1,721,700) 1,125,991
KA 5 & A CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
KABITHEEZ HE Proceeds from issue of debt 2,001,290 —
AT Z #0H Proceeds from issue of share 400,227 _
RARE GBI Z B 40 & T3 Net cash flows from financing activities 2,401,517 _
RERBESHEAIWYHH  NET DECREASE IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS (826,515) (1,719,825)
AN [ 3428 8 2 5 0 A Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net (2,535) (2,585)
ENZBERIESEIER Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 5,561,570 7,283,980
SR BIE BB A S HIEH CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
END OF YEAR 4,732,520 5,561,570
B R BLA ST H B B A ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS
JEAF B4 AT TR S 4 B Cash on hand and balances with banks 1,349,957 2,679,937
FA=MHANRBZ EHARMEH  Deposits with monetary authority with original
Wit maturity within three months 1,001,825 447,752
FA=MHANEIMZ A MA%EHE  Placements with other banks with original
maturity within three months 1,580,739 1,924,079
J5E =M H R EN 2 1 Treasury bills with original maturity within 3
months 799,999 509,802
4,732,520 5,561,570
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A i Bt 5 Notes to Financial Statements

RPN ASH
31 December 2009

1. A%

A ST iR i BB A P A W (R B BRAT 1)
T5H LB AR R Z R ERAT o R
FZ)N\GFE—A )\ H b TR A7 ([ TR 8
T HDBBRARBITE S Z LT UBNLEZIRA
I b TR SRAT B R AR SRAT Z B A IR A ] o

MR 2 IE—H TIIUA BT 2 IR R
WK BBz R k% - PR T RATE
28 33 A\ 1B IV SR AT IR 43 AT (T R SR AT I
4347 1) 2 2 0 ¥ 3 v A » W W AR AT R
AT Z ey - B H B R SRAT (IR ) e 4
ARRAT ] - %I 5 B L SR AT A
P Ay N ) IR DR e B I - I
BEEBIHARITREHERITEH =5
ZF A BB R AR o R 2
HEPLBLE Bl TR SUTIRM ST 2 2 g
B - RER) BB BT 2 T X
£ o RGBT R E BT AT - WM
Sl BRSO P A AT BUR B A RS B8
TR A Z AR » RS AR R RILE
TA+—HAR > MASRITZ L0 Hi&Ed
RS SRAT R v R VR SR AT (R ) B A R A
A o

BARK > TR EATIRACHAT Z RS In 2 4
ZNTIE == ARRATHER T INE ST - =
T B J 2 W] B M T 4 H T o LR BEE R A
B > BPAE P R AR A M Ik 42 B SRAT ~ DB &
R RS o AR BRAT 2 5 300 2 8 s W05 1 2
FRELR FG 1% T T T 8 L R 0 TR (WRFT) P
WA

Corporate Information

The Bank is previously known as Seng Heng Bank
Limited (“SHB”) which has been operating as a
licensed bank in Macau since 1972. On 28 January
2008, 79.93% of the share capital of the Bank was
acquired by Industrial and Commercial Bank of China
(“ICBC”) and since then, ICBC has become the Bank’s
ultimate holding company.

Pursuant to a special resolution passed in the extra-
ordinary general meeting of the Bank on 19 January
2009, ICBC decided to subscribe new shares in SHB by
contributing the whole net assets of Banco Industrial
E Comercial Da China, Macao Branch (“ICBC Macau
Branch”) and form a new company named “Industrial
and Commercial Bank of China (Macau) Limited”. The
transaction was expected to integrate the ICBC’s assets
as well as human resources in Macau for its further
business expansion. The integration was accomplished
by ICBC acquiring all the 132,121 new shares of SHB,
the purchase consideration for subscription of new
shares was in the form of cash as well as transferring
all assets and liabilities, the rights and obligations of
ICBC Macau Branch to SHB. Having obtained the
approval in respect of the integration and issuance
of new shares from the China Banking Regulatory
Commission, the Monetary Authority of Macau,
as well as the Chief Executive of Macau SAR, the
integration finally came into effect on 11 July 2009,
and the name of the Bank was then changed from SHB
into Industrial Commercial Bank of China (Macau)
Limited.

After the integration, ICBC’s shareholding of the
Bank increased to 89.33%. The Bank has 14 branches,
3 subsidiaries and a work force around 500 staff
members. The principal activities have remained
unchanged in the provision of banking, financial and
related services in Macau and nearby regions. The
Bank’s registered office is 18th Floor, ICBC Tower,
Macau Landmark, 555 Avenida da Amizade, Macau.
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2.1 I

MR M RE 1 R M RE 21 BT 988 > REUTIR R %
JUARB T b — H O TR ST IR 4347 N BE B
FAL o W% IE AL P K WA AE R — R R R T
B3k Z A 0F > T ACHR B A JL A% — 5 U
SRMEPE o G - BB R A O et I

7 5 S0 25 A O > LB AR A B 2 B i
3R B Y fo R AR AR AE ©

2.2 B REE

Vo 5 S A 2 RO Y 3 AT B IR 5 25/2005 984T
B0 BT 2 S 0 i B (TR 5 i o o
S0 A > R B S A i B S AR SO
et sl XM RE B Z MBI T - AR
O RO R R )\ E—H— Bz &
B &ty 2 i S0 ] 2 T B 5 o ) (T o S
Bt R B L) o I B o v U 45 o B
st i U)o oy (T ot o 0 B oy ) A 2
e e B o DL R o B oA ) 2 R T
Phak A 2z B Bt S R B 2 H ek
BE o BRI HH 25 DA We oy o (0l 2 4 b 2
TR BB R A A ik T DL A
Bb > AT B DR SR B A A S K

A B AR BUR > B B A SIS > B
A SR LR P T o0 R B -

2.1

2.2
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Basis of Presentation

Pursuant to the reorganization as disclosed in note
1 and note 21, the Bank acquired ICBC Macau
Branch on 11 July 2009. The reorganization involved
combination of entities or businesses under common
control and the Group accounted for it as a continuing
group. Accordingly, the financial statements have
been prepared by applying the principles of merger

accounting.

The financial statements have been prepared as if the
current state of the Group had been in existence at the

beginning of the earliest period presented.

Basis of Preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with the Financial Reporting Standards
set out in Administrative Regulation No. 25/2005
of the Special Administrative Region of Macau
(“MFRS”) and, where MFRS has no provisions
governing the accounting treatment for a particular
balance or transaction, the International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) in issue and
applicable for accounting periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2008 are adopted. IFRSs comprise
standards and interpretations approved by the
International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”),
and International Accounting Standards and Standing
Interpretations Committee interpretations approved
by the International Accounting Standards Committee
that remain in effect. These financial statements have
been prepared under the historical cost convention
except for the financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, available-for-sale investments and
derivatives financial instruments, which have been

measured at fair value.

These financial statements are presented in Patacas
(“MOP”) and all values are rounded to the nearest

thousand except when otherwise indicated.
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Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
audited financial statements of the Bank and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”)
for the year ended 31 December 2009. The results
of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date of
acquisition, being the date on which the Group obtains
control, and continue to be consolidated until the
date that such control ceases. All income, expenses
and unrealised gains and losses resulting from
intercompany transactions and intercompany balances
within the Group are eliminated on consolidation in
full.

Changes in Accounting Policy and
Disclosures

The Group has adopted the following new and revised
IFRSs for the first time for the current year’s financial

statements.

IFRS 1 and IAS 27 Amendments to IFRS 1 First-
time Adoption of IFRSs and IAS
27 Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements — Cost of

Amendments

an Investment in a Subsidiary,
Jointly Controlled Entity or
Associate

IFRS 2 Amendments to IFRS 2 Share-
Amendments based Payment — Vesting
Conditions and Cancellations
IFRS 7 Amendments to IFRS 7 Financial
Amendments Instruments: Disclosures —
Improving Disclosures about
Financial Instruments

IFRS 8 Operating Segments

IAS 1 (Revised) Presentation of Financial
Statements
IAS 18 Amendment to Appendix to IAS
Amendment* 18 Revenue — Determining
whether an entity is acting as a
principal or as an agent

IAS 23 (Revised)  Borrowing Costs
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IAS 32 and IAS 1  Amendments to IAS 32 Financial
Amendments Instruments: Presentation and
1AS 1 Presentation of Financial
Statements — Puttable Financial

Instruments and Obligations

Arising on Liquidation

IFRIC-Int 9 Amendments to IFRIC-Int 9
and IAS 39 Reassessment of Embedded
Amendments Derivatives and IAS 39

Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement
— Embedded Derivatives

IFRIC-Int 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes

IFRIC-Int 15 Agreements for the Construction

of Real Estate

IFRIC-Int 16 Hedges of a Net Investment in a

Foreign Operation

IFRIC-Int 18 Transfers of Assets from

Customers (adopted from 1 July
2009)

* Included in Improvements to IFRSs 2009 (as issued in
May 2009).

Other than as further explained below regarding the
impact of IAS 1 (Revised), the adoption of these new
and revised IFRSs has had no significant financial
effect on these financial statements.

TIAS 1 (Revised) Presentation of Financial Statements

IAS 1 (Revised) introduces changes in the presentation
and disclosures of financial statements. The revised
standard separates owner and non-owner changes in
equity. The statement of changes in equity includes
only details of transactions with owners, with all non-
owner changes in equity presented as a single line.
In addition, this standard introduces the statement of
comprehensive income, with all items of income and
expense recognised in profit or loss, together with
all other items of recognised income and expense
recognised directly in equity, either in one single
statement, or in two linked statements. The Group has
elected to present two statements.
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2.4

Amendments to IFRS 7 Financial Instruments:
Disclosures — Improving Disclosures about Financial
Instruments

The IFRS 7 Amendments require additional
disclosures about fair value measurement and liquidity
risk. Fair value measurements related to items recorded
at fair value are to be disclosed by sources of inputs
using a three-level fair value hierarchy, by class, for
all financial instruments recognised at fair value. In
addition, a reconciliation between the beginning and
ending balance is now required for Level 3 fair value
measurements, as well as significant transfers between
levels in the fair value hierarchy. The amendments also
clarify the requirements for liquidity risk disclosures
with respect to derivative transactions and assets used
for liquidity management. The fair value measurement
disclosures are presented in note 25 to the financial
statements while the revised liquidity risk disclosures
are presented in note 26(b) to the financial statements.

Issued but not yet Effective International
Financial Reporting Standards

The Group has not applied the following new and
revised IFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet
effective, in these financial statements.

IFRS 3 (Revised) Business Combinations '

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments ’

IAS 24 (Revised)  Related Party Disclosures’

IAS 27 (Revised)  Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements '

Apart from the above, the TASB has issued
Improvements to IFRSs 2009 which sets out
amendments to a number of IFRSs primarily with
a view to removing inconsistencies and clarifying
wording. The amendments to IFRIC-Int 9 and IFRIC-
Int 16 are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 July 2009 while the amendments to
IAS 1 and TAS 39 are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2010 although there
are separate transitional provisions for each standard
or interpretation.
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Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
July 2009

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2011

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2013

IFRS 3 (Revised) introduces a number of changes
in the accounting for business combinations that
will impact the amount of goodwill recognised, the
reported results in the period that an acquisition
occurs, and future reported results.

IAS 27 (Revised) requires that a change in the
ownership interest of a subsidiary without loss of
control is accounted for as an equity transaction.
Therefore, such a change will have no impact on
goodwill, nor will it give rise to a gain or loss.
Furthermore, the revised standard changes the
accounting for losses incurred by the subsidiary
as well as the loss of control of a subsidiary. Other
consequential amendments were made to IAS 7
Statement of Cash Flows, 1AS 12 Income Taxes, 1AS
21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates,
IAS 28 Investments in Associates and 1AS 31 Interests
in Joint Ventures.

The Group expects to adopt IFRS 3 (Revised) and
IAS 27 (Revised) from 1 January 2010. The changes
introduced by these revised standards must be applied
prospectively and will affect the accounting of future
acquisitions, loss of control and transactions with
minority interests.

IFRS 9 issued in November 2009 is the first part of
phase 1 of a comprehensive project to entirely replace
IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement. This phase focuses on the classification
and measurement of financial assets. Instead of
classifying financial assets into four categories, an
entity shall classify financial assets as subsequently
measured at either amortised cost or fair value, on
the basis of both the entity’s business model for
managing the financial assets and the contractual
cash flow characteristics of the financial assets. This
aims to improve and simplify the approach for the
classification and measurement of financial assets
compared with the requirements of IAS 39.

IAS 39 is aimed to be replaced by IFRS 9 in its
entirety by the end of 2010. The Group expects to
adopt IFRS 9 from 1 January 2013.
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IAS 24 (Revised) clarifies and simplifies the
definition of related parties. It also provides for
a partial exemption of related party disclosure to
government-related entities for transactions with
the same government or entities that are controlled,
jointly controlled or significantly influenced by the
same government. The Group expects to adopt IAS 24
(Revised) from 1 January 2011 and the comparative
related party disclosures will be amended accordingly.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment
of the impact of these new and revised IFRSs upon
initial application. So far, the Group considers that
these new and revised IFRSs are unlikely to have a
significant impact on the Group’s results of operations
and financial position.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity whose financial and operating
policies the Bank controls, directly or indirectly, so as
to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Bank’s
income statement to the extent of dividends received
and receivable. The Bank’s interests in subsidiaries are
stated at cost less any impairment losses.

Merger accounting

The use of merger accounting is to account for a
common control combination with no acquisition
occurred and there has been a continuation of the
risks and benefits to the controlling party that existed
prior to the combination. Use of merger accounting
recognises this by accounting for the combining
entities or businesses as though the separate entities or
businesses where continuing as before.

In applying merger accounting, financial statement
items of the combining entities or businesses for
the reporting period in which the common control
combination occurs, and for any comparative periods
disclosed, are included in the consolidated financial
statements of the combined entity as if the combination
had occurred from the date when the combining
entities or businesses first came under the control of
the controlling party.
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Where the combining entities or businesses include an
entity or a business previously acquired from a third
party, the financial statement items of such entity
or business are only included in the consolidated
financial statements of the combined entity from the
date of the previous acquisition using the acquisition
values recognised at that date.

A single uniform set of accounting policies is adopted
by the combined entity. Therefore, the combined
entity recognised the assets, liabilities and equity of
the combining entities or businesses at the carrying
amounts in the consolidated financial statements of
the controlling party prior to the common control
combination. If consolidated financial statements
were not previously prepared by the controlling
party, the carrying amounts are included as if such
consolidated financial statements had been prepared,
including adjustments required for the conforming the
combined entity’s accounting policies and applying
those policies to all periods presented. These carrying
amounts are referred to below as existing book values
from the controlling party’s perspective. There is
no recognition of any additional goodwill or excess
of the acquirer’s interest in the net fair value of the
acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities over cost at the time of the common control
combination to the extent of the continuation of the
controlling party’s interests. Similarly, in accordance
with TAS 27, the effects of all transactions between the
combining entities or businesses, whether occurring
before or after the combination, are eliminated in
preparing the consolidated financial statements of the
combined entity.
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Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@

(b)

(d)

©

®

the party, directly or indirectly through one or
more intermediaries, (i) controls, is controlled
by, or is under common control with, the Group;
(ii) has an interest in the Group that gives it
significant influence over the Group; or (iii) has

joint control over the Group;

the party is an associate;

the party is a jointly-controlled entity;

the party is a member of the key management

personnel of the Group or its holding company;

the party is a close member of the family of any

individual referred to in (a) or (d); or

the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly
controlled or significantly influenced by or
for which significant voting power in such
entity resides with, directly or indirectly, any

individual referred to in (d) or ().
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Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost or
valuation less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses. The cost of an item of property,
plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and
any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset
to its working condition and location for its intended
use. Expenditure incurred after items of property,
plant and equipment have been put into operation,
such as repairs and maintenance, is normally charged
to the income statement in the period in which it is
incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria
are satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection
is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as a
replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant
and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals,
the Group recognises such parts as individual assets

with specific useful lives and depreciation.

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis to
write off the cost or valuation of each item of property,
plant and equipment to its residual value over its
estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used

for this purpose are as follows:

Leasehold land and
buildings

Over the shorter of the
lease terms and 50
years

Furniture and fixtures 5 to 10 years

Motor vehicles and 4 to 10 years

equipments

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost of that
item is allocated on a reasonable basis among the parts

and each part is depreciated separately.

Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at

least at each financial year end.
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An item of property, plant and equipment and any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss
on disposal or retirement recognised in the income
statement in the year the asset is derecognised is the
difference between the net sales proceeds and the

carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and
buildings held to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation, rather than for use in the production
or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of
business. The Group adopted the cost method for
its investment property and measures its investment
property in accordance with the requirements of
IAS 16, in which the property are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses. Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line
basis at the annual rate of 2% to write off the cost of
each investment property to its residual value over
its estimated useful life. Any gains or losses on the
retirement or disposal of an investment property are
recognised in the income statement in the year of the

retirement or disposal.

Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards
and risks of ownership of assets to the Group, other
than legal title, are accounted for as finance leases.
At the inception of a finance lease, the cost of the
leased asset is capitalised at the present value of the
minimum lease payments and recorded together with
the obligation, excluding the interest element, to
reflect the purchase and financing. Assets held under
capitalised finance leases are included in property,
plant and equipment, and depreciated over the shorter
of the lease terms and the estimated useful lives of the
assets. The finance costs of such leases are charged
to the income statement so as to provide a constant

periodic rate of charge over the lease terms.
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Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks
of ownership of assets remain with the lessor are
accounted for as operating leases. Where the Group is
the lessor, assets leased by the Group under operating
leases are included in non-current assets, and rentals
receivable under the operating leases are credited to
the income statement on the straight-line basis over
the lease terms. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals
payable under operating leases are charged to the
income statement on the straight-line basis over the
lease terms.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the
asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-
generating unit’s value in use and its fair value less
costs to sell, and is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that
are largely independent of those from other assets or
groups of assets, in which case the recoverable amount
is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the income
statement in the period in which it arises.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is any indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may no
longer exist or may have decreased. If such an
indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset
is reversed only if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount
of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the
carrying amount that would have been determined (net
of any depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A
reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to the
income statement in the period in which it arises.
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Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets within the scope of TAS 39 are
classified as financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, loans and receivables, held-to-maturity
investments, and available-for-sale financial assets, or
as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an
effective hedge, as appropriate. The Group determines
the classification of its financial assets at initial
recognition. When financial assets are recognised
initially, they are measured at fair value, plus, in the
case of investments not at fair value through profit or

loss, directly attributable transaction costs.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that
the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the period generally established by regulation

or convention in the marketplace.

The Group’s financial assets include cash and
bank balances, trade and other receivables,
loans receivables, quoted and unquoted financial

instruments, and derivative financial instruments.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets

depends on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
include financial assets held for trading. Financial
assets are classified as held for trading if they are
acquired for the purpose of sale in the near term. This
category includes derivative financial instruments
entered into by the Group that are not designated
as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as
defined by IAS 39. Derivatives, including separated
embedded derivatives, are also classified as held for

trading unless they are designated as effective hedging
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instruments. Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are carried in the statement of financial
position at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in the income statement. These net fair
value changes do not include any dividends on these
financial assets, which are recognised in accordance
with the policy set out for “Revenue recognition”

below.

The Group evaluates its financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (held for trading) to assess
whether the intent to sell them in the near term is
still appropriate. When the Group is unable to trade
these financial assets due to inactive markets and
management’s intent to sell them in the foreseeable
future significantly changes, the Group may elect to
reclassify these financial assets in rare circumstances.
The reclassification from financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss to loans and receivables,
available-for-sale financial assets or held-to-maturity

investments depends on the naturze of the assets.

Derivatives embedded in host contracts are accounted
for as separate derivatives and recorded at fair value
if their economic characteristics and risks are not
closely related to those of the host contracts and the
host contracts are not held for trading or designated
at fair value through profit or loss. These embedded
derivatives are measured at fair value with changes
in fair value recognised in the income statement.
Reassessment only occurs if there is a change in the
terms of the contract that significantly modifies the
cash flows that would otherwise be required.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. After initial
measurement, such assets are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method less any allowance for impairment. Amortised
cost is calculated taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and includes fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is included
in finance income in the income statement. The loss
arising from impairment is recognised in the income
statement.
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Held-to-maturity investments

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments and fixed maturity are
classified as held to maturity when the Group has the
positive intention and ability to hold to maturity. Held-
to-maturity investments are subsequently measured
at amortised cost less any allowance for impairment.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account
any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or
costs that are an integral part of the effective interest
rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is
included in finance income in the income statement.
The loss arising from impairment is recognised in the
income statement in finance costs.

Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-
derivative financial assets in listed and unlisted equity
and debt securities. Equity investments classified as
available for sale are those which are neither classified
as held for trading nor designated at fair value through
profit or loss. Debt securities in this category are those
which are intended to be held for an indefinite period
of time and which may be sold in response to needs
for liquidity or in response to changes in the market

conditions.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial
investments are subsequently measured at fair value,
with unrealised gains or losses recognised as other
comprehensive income in the available-for-sale
investment valuation reserve until the investment is
derecognised, at which time the cumulative gain or
loss is recognised in the income statement in other
income, or until the investment is determined to be
impaired, at which time the cumulative gain or loss is
recognised in the income statement and removed from
the available-for-sale investment valuation reserve.
Interest and dividends earned are reported as interest
income and dividend income, respectively and are
recognised in the income statement as other income
in accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue

recognition” below.
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When the fair value of unlisted equity securities
cannot be reliably measured because (a) the variability
in the range of reasonable fair value estimates is
significant for that investment or (b) the probabilities
of the various estimates within the range cannot be
reasonably assessed and used in estimating fair value,
such securities are stated at cost less any impairment

losses.

The Group evaluates its available-for-sale financial
assets whether the ability and intention to sell them
in the near term are still appropriate. When the
Group is unable to trade these financial assets due to
inactive markets and management’s intent to do so
significantly changes in the foresecable future, the
Group may elect to reclassify these financial assets
in rare circumstances. Reclassification to loans and
receivables is permitted when the financial assets meet
the definition of loans and receivables and the Group
has the intent and ability to hold these assets for the
foreseeable future or to maturity. The reclassification
to the held-to-maturity category is permitted only
when the entity has the ability and intent to hold until

the maturity date of the financial asset.

For a financial asset reclassified out of the available-
for-sale category, any previous gain or loss on that
asset that has been recognised in equity is amortised to
profit or loss over the remaining life of the investment
using the effective interest rate. Any difference
between the new amortised cost and the expected cash
flows is also amortised over the remaining life of
the asset using the effective interest rate. If the asset
is subsequently determined to be impaired, then the
amount recorded in equity is reclassified to the income

statement.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial

assets) is derecognised when:

. the rights to receive cash flows from the asset

have expired;
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. the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from the asset, or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full
without material delay to a third party under a
“pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has

transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-
through arrangement, and has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is
recognised to the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement in the asset. In that case, the Group also
recognises an associated liability. The transferred
asset and the associated liability are measured on a
basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the

Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the
lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and
the maximum amount of consideration that the Group

could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is any objective evidence that a financial
asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. A
financial asset or a group of financial assets is deemed
to be impaired if, and only if, there is objective
evidence of impairment as a result of one or more
events that has occurred after the initial recognition of
the asset (an incurred “loss event”) and that loss event
has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of
the financial asset or the group of financial assets that
can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may
include indications that a debtor or a group of debtors
is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default

or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the
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probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation and observable data indicating
that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or

economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the
Group first assesses individually whether objective
evidence of impairment exists for financial assets
that are individually significant, or collectively for
financial assets that are not individually significant.
If the Group determines that no objective evidence
of impairment exists for an individually assessed
financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes
the asset in a group of financial assets with similar
credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses
them for impairment. Assets that are individually
assessed for impairment and for which an impairment
loss is, or continues to be, recognised are not included

in a collective assessment of impairment.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss
has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured
as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not yet been
incurred). The present value of the estimated future
cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate (i.e., the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition). If a
loan has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for
measuring any impairment loss is the current effective

interest rate.

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced either
directly or through the use of an allowance account
and the amount of the loss is recognised in the income
statement. Interest income continues to be accrued on
the reduced carrying amount and is accrued using the
rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows
for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss.
Loans and receivables together with any associated
allowance are written off when there is no realistic

prospect of future recovery.
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If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is increased
or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a
future write-off is later recovered, the recovery is

credited to the income statement.

Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss
has been incurred on an unquoted equity instrument
that is not carried at fair value because its fair value
cannot be reliably measured, the amount of the loss
is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows discounted at the current market
rate of return for a similar financial asset. Impairment

losses on these assets are not reversed.

Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group
assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that an investment or a

group of investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount
comprising the difference between its cost (net of
any principal payment and amortisation) and its
current fair value, less any impairment loss previously
recognised in the income statement, is removed from
other comprehensive income and recognised in the

income statement.

In the case of equity investments classified as
available for sale, objective evidence would include a
significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an
investment below its cost. The determination of what
is “significant” or ‘‘prolonged” requires judgement.
“Significant” is evaluated against the original cost
of the investment and “prolonged” against the period
in which the fair value has been below its original
cost. Where there is evidence of impairment, the
cumulative loss — measured as the difference between
the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less

any impairment loss on that investment previously
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recognised in the income statement — is removed
from other comprehensive income and recognised in
the income statement. Impairment losses on equity
instruments classified as available for sale are not
reversed through the income statement. Increases
in their fair value after impairment are recognised

directly in other comprehensive income.

In the case of debt instruments classified as available
for sale, impairment is assessed based on the same
criteria as financial assets carried at amortised cost.
However, the amount recorded for impairment is the
cumulative loss measured as the difference between
the amortised cost and the current fair value, less
any impairment loss on that investment previously
recognised in the income statement. Future interest
income continues to be accrued based on the reduced
carrying amount of the asset and is accrued using the
rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows
for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. The
interest income is recorded as part of finance income.
Impairment losses on debt instruments are reversed
through the income statement, if the increase in fair
value of the instruments can be objectively related
to an event occurring after the impairment loss was

recognised in the income statement.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities within the scope of IAS 39 are
classified as financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss, loans and borrowings, or as derivatives
designated as hedging instruments in an effective
hedge, as appropriate. The Group determines the
classification of its financial liabilities at initial

recognition.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair
value and in the case of loans and borrowings, plus

directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and
other payables, an amount due to the ultimate holding
company, derivative financial instruments and

interest-bearing loans and borrowings.
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Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on

their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or

loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss includes financial liabilities held for trading and
financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition

as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading
if they are acquired for the purpose of selling in
the near term. This category includes derivative
financial instruments entered into by the Group
that are not designated as hedging instruments in
hedge relationships as defined by IAS 39. Separated
embedded derivatives, are also classified as held for
trading unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities held for
trading are recognised in the income statement. The
net fair value gain or loss recognised in the income
statement does not include any interest charged on

these financial liabilities.

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rate method unless
the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are
recognised in the income statement when the liabilities
are derecognised as well as through the effective

interest rate method amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account
any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or
costs that are an integral part of the effective interest
rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is

included in finance costs in the income statement.
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Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the
obligation under the liability is discharged or

cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced
by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and a recognition of a new liability,
and the difference between the respective carrying

amounts is recognised in the income statement.

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are
traded in active markets is determined by reference
to quoted market prices or dealer price quotations
(bid price for long positions and ask price for short
positions), without any deduction for transaction costs.
For financial instruments where there is no active
market, the fair value is determined using appropriate
valuation techniques. Such techniques include using
recent arm’s length market transactions; reference to
the current market value of another instrument which
is substantially the same; a discounted cash flow

analysis; and other valuation models.

Derivative financial instruments

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Group uses derivative financial instruments such
as forward currency contracts and interest rate swaps
to hedge its foreign currency risk and interest rate risk,
respectively. Such derivative financial instruments
are initially recognised at fair value on the date on
which a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently remeasured at fair value. Derivatives are
carried as assets when the fair value is positive and as

liabilities when the fair value is negative.
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Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair
value of derivatives are taken directly to the income
statement, except for the effective portion of cash flow
hedges, which is recognised in other comprehensive

income.

The fair value of forward currency contracts is
calculated by reference to current forward exchange
rates for contracts with similar maturity profiles. The
fair value of interest rate swap contracts is determined

by reference to market values for similar instruments.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and demand deposits, and short term highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity
of generally within three months when acquired, less
bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and
form an integral part of the Group’s cash management.
For the purpose of the statement of financial position,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and at banks, including term deposits, which are not

restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation
(legal or constructive) has arisen as a result of a
past event and it is probable that a future outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation,
provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the

amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the
end of the reporting period of the future expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation. The
increase in the discounted present value amount
arising from the passage of time is included in finance

costs in the income statement.
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Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax.
Income tax relating to items recognised outside profit
or loss is recognised outside profit or loss, either in

other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current
and prior periods are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the

countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method,
on all temporary differences at the end of the reporting
period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts for financial reporting

purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable

temporary differences, except:

. where the deferred tax liability arises from the
initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable

profit or loss; and

. in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and interests in joint ventures, where
the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable
that the temporary differences will not reverse

in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, and the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax

losses can be utilised, except:
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. where the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in
a transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit

or loss; and

. in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and interests in joint ventures,
deferred tax assets are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future
and taxable profit will be available against

which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of
the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised
deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of each
reporting period and are recognised to the extent that
it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax

asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting

period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are
offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the
deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the

same taxation authority.
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Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when
the revenue can be measured reliably, on the following

bases:

(i) interest income on loans and advances to
customers are recognised on an accrual basis
using the effective interest method by applying
the rate that discounts the estimated future
cash receipts through the expected life of the
financial instrument to the net carrying amount

of the financial assets;

(i) fees and commission income are recognised

when services are rendered;

(iii) dividend income is recognised when the Group’s
right to receive payment has been established;

and

(iv) rental income, on a time proportion basis over

the lease terms.

Retirement benefits scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution retirement
benefits scheme for its employees, including key
management personnel. Contributions are made based
on a percentage of the participating employees’ basic
salaries and are charged to the income statement as
they become payable in accordance with the rules of

the scheme.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Macau
Pataca (“MOP”), which is the Company’s functional
and presentation currency. Each entity in the Group
determines its own functional currency and items
included in the financial statements of each entity
are measured using that functional currency. Foreign
currency transactions recorded by the entities in the
Group are initially recorded using their respective
functional currency rates ruling at the dates of

the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
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Bl o $RIESRADAME iR Z JE R I > R
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denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the
end of the reporting period. All differences are taken
to the income statement. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at
the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the date when

the fair value was determined.

The functional currencies of certain overseas
subsidiaries are currencies other than MOP. As at the
end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities
of these entities are translated into the presentation
currency of the Company at the exchange rates
ruling at the end of the reporting period and their
income statements are translated into MOP at the
weighted average exchange rates for the year. The
resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in.
On disposal of a foreign operation the component of
other comprehensive income relating to that particular
foreign operation is recognised in the income

statement.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
cash flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiary is
translated into MOP at the exchange rates ruling at
the dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash
flows of overseas subsidiary which arise throughout
the year are translated into MOP at the weighted

average exchange rates for the year.
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3. FAREALZRY 3. Related Party Transactions
(a) BROFEEME S HARn Rz 5 (a)  In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere
Ab > AEE B A A AR BEHEAT T DL TR A in these financial statements, the Group had
AERS - the following transactions with related parties

during the year:

2009 2008

BT WM T

MOP million MOP million

el

(restated)

F B H Interest expense 28 63

FB WA Interest income 71 449
(b)  HAERCE IR > A I A AR B A (b) At the end of the reporting period, the Group
B WA B SR AT IR SR W A R had no contingent liabilities in respect of bank
MEIB sl A (2R 4E : ) - guarantees and irrevocable letters of credit

issued on behalf of related parties (2008: Nil).

(c) FHREALZRIAEE - (¢)  Outstanding balances with related parties:
2009 2008
BT T WRFTHE #oT
MOP million MOP million
(H31)
(restated)
[FlEA2 3K (1) Deposits from other banks (i) 2,891 532
CEAT B RS R
B4 (i) Debt issued and borrowed funds (i) 2,001 —
A& M AF LA 2E45%  Cash and balances with banks 122 310
Rl SR (i) Inter-bank placement (iii) 515 616
FREFWHBE Held-to-maturity investments — 41
BIBBER VR REME Financial assets at fair value through
Z ARG profit or loss — 65
ke R Available-for-sale investments — 64
gﬁﬁ%&ﬂ?ﬁ(iv) Loans and advances to customers (iv) 3,613 2,842
()  ASHR I 2 B A B ) B H A (i)  The Group’s inter-bank taking, and inter-
ARG IPACPAGE /W 3L bank balances with its ultimate holding
AWM BT —a company and other companies under
HG > A O TR E R R R common control amounted to MOP2,891
REASZFEH AL L —NHAN million, which are paying an effective
FB s interest rate of 0-0.65714% as at the

reporting date;
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(@)

(i) A EE A MR DLE BT B > (ii)  As disclosed in the consolidated statement
WK > A B AT B of financial position, the Group had
KR AF A ZBEHEFRM issued subordinated debts hold by its
o EEEHETC(CEEREN ultimate holding company of MOP2,001
A ) o RAE IR AR AT B 1% million (2008: Nil) as at the end of the
BRI H A W 8T [ 3697 B i 8 reporting period. The subordinated debts
ZEHAEHGARE o REEH are unsecured, and paying floating rates
o Hp@EmEruER—a48 linked to 6M HIBOR, as at the reporting
AR ZFE—WESAHZTHZEH date MOP1,401 million out of total
R > AR T W S R 0 R debts due are repayable on 23 Jun 2014
Jii] 52 # R 5 meanwhile the remaining MOP600 million

has no fixed term of repayment;

(i) # Hem H . A4 E B & (iii) As at the reporting date, the Group’s inter-
P e A W] 22 I 3 A R WY bank placement with its ultimate holding
LE—TLhLEEHT  JIREERN company amounted to MOP515 million,
KA ZZFHEZZE—HAHN which is paying an effective interest rate
B R R 4L —HMNAR of 0.0001% and to be matured on 4 Jan
s 2010;

(iv) A< 45 [ fhy b A2 36 ) 35 0 A W) R (iv) The Group’s loans and advances to other
e A B8 B Bk T3 e BB R R 4 companies under common control are
ZEEWNNANNLCHEA S ZZE paying an effective interest rate of 0.48875

SECEHMAMA - to 3.02313%.
ARG R A BB Z BT (d) Compensation of key management personnel of
the Group:

2009 2008

BT T WP #o

MOP million MOP million

(H41)
(restated)

IR B AR A Short-term employee benefits 45 36
BARAE A Post-employment benefits — 1

45 37
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4. HAbBEBATH 4.  Other Operating Income, Net
2009 2008
WH T8 W ToT
MOP’000 MOP’000
(H41)
(restated)
4L N Fee and commission income 274,621 190,546
o H KA 4 3 Fee and commission expense (57,585) (52,698)
B R A T Net fee and commission income 217,036 137,848
F B IER RS M3  Guarantee payment to secured income fund
i — (5,800)
JBE B Dividend income 1,220 4,687
AR g 2 s, Net gains/(losses) on foreign currency
(E18) F# transactions 29,519 (31,789)
AR 4 A 1 25 DL R W Net gains/(losses) from financial assets
AREEEREREZILE  at fair value through profit or loss
/UG ) 117,937 (74,101)
KA W EFEERIN A Net losses from disposal of held-to-
Eitaced Eisbt ] maturity investments - (15,592)
REH BB EREZ Net (losses)/gains from disposal of
(1) W% T available-for-sale Investments (6,589) 9,109
KA AT HZ Net gains/(losses) arising from financial
Weak () 35 derivative 17,937 (6,475)
e - oS Mkt (Losses)/gains on disposal of items of
HHZUBR), Wi property, plant and equipment (1,596) 20
A& H B Visa Inc. Income from redemption of Visa Inc.
ety Z WA Shares — 17,561
A WA Rental Income 7,224 6,846
oAt Others 1,912 1,618
384,600 43,932
A AE ] S e 2 R B S Rt R M 2 E RIS B 2 The Group has no fee and commission income derived
R4 WA - from trust and other fiduciary activities.
5. BEEBNM 5. Operating Expenses
2009 2008
BOIMTE WP
MOP’000 MOP’000
(H41)
(restated)
P Depreciation 28,264 27,389
T M B B B4 Operating lease rentals on land and buildings 23,722 16,981
H T A Staff costs 173,508 155,102
IBAR 4 A Pension costs 6,348 4,659
HAb=mEHH Other operating expenses 92,827 90,118
HIEHT Professional fees 13,082 13,971
A% S T 42 Auditors’ remuneration 2,502 1,653

340,253 309,873
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6. R R 2 DA IR 6. Impairment Allowance for Impaired Assets

(1) PR MK ST - (1) Movements in impairment allowances on loans

and advances to customers:

il HOE
AR WAL B aat

Collective Individual

impairment impairment
allowance allowance Total
WMTE W% TC WP T
MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000

MZRBIUE—H—H At January 2009 20,819 36,634 57,453
0B A 1R Charged for impairment losses 134,398 12,117 146,515
P8 100 P4 s 4R Write-back of impairment losses (113,962) (1,205) (115,167)

AR BRI E##  Impairment allowance charged

to the income statement 20,436 10,912 31,348
TR A W] W el 2 4% Uncollectible amounts written off — (110) (110)
[T e, 3R Exchange realignment 4 13 17
h_BELE At 31 December 2009
+=ZH=+—H 41,259 47,449 88,708
=Y At 1 January 2008 as restated
—H—H (&%) 17,321 19,697 37,018
0B A 1R Charged for impairment losses 5,971 19,227 25,198
P58 I kA W 1 Write-back of impairment losses (2,391) (346) (2,737)

A F BRI E#H#  Impairment allowance charged

to the income statement 3,580 18,881 22,461
S AN T WL I 2 Uncollectible amounts written off — (392) (392)
R AN BIRAZ Unwind of discount of loan
BOBAEREHEPI B E impairment allowance recognised
as interest income — (1,552) (1,552)
T e, 3R Exchange realignment (82) — (82)
A ZRE LR At 31 December 2008 as restated

+ZH=+—H
(FH) 20,819 36,634 57,453
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(i) FEEFYHBEREBEZEBWT

(i) Movements in impairment allowances on held-

to-maturity investments:

2009 2008

i WM TIL WM T

Note MOP’000 MOP’000

(T )

(restated)

#—H—H At 1 January 135,646 _
ERSINEE S Charged to the income statement 11 — 135,646
A+ _H=+—H At31 December 135,646 135,646

7. Pif3st 7.

A AR [ A A R 2 A O S B A WP T A
Mt o WL P A FE )G 45 1 R E R BE 2 A DL 2R
EHRAREHETETSZ T2 (ZBF)NE |
Sz ) -

Income Tax

The Group’s tax charge for the year includes
provisions for Macau complementary tax levies.
Macau complementary tax has been provided at
progressive rate to a maximum of 12% (2008: 12%) on
the estimated taxable profits.

2009 2008

BT o0 WP oo

MOP’000 MOP’000

(&%)

(restated)

2B IE Current tax 75,434 57,407
AEERLIE F 6% ([l ) Deferred tax liabilities/(Write back)

(W3 18) (note 18) 1,049 (7,071)

T SR HE SEBLIE % 2 (Mfa# 18) Recognition of deferred tax assets (note 18) (6,898) (18,479)

A AE B Fi V8 37 Total tax charge for the year 69,585 31,857
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LR AR I R AR Z R R R A reconciliation of the statutory tax rate to the
effective tax rate of the Group is as follows:
2009 2008
HAK A
% %
(%)
(restated)
5 B R BT Tax at the applicable tax rate 12.07 12.08
it 7 W TR AL 2L IR A ) Estimated tax effect of net income/expense
B (st 2 that is not deductible/(not taxable) in
WA T F#MFIZ determining taxable profit
BB 0.03 (2.97)
A5l OB BLIE s 1R Estimated tax losses utilised — (0.43)
ARMETRZ W R 25 5 Temporary difference not recognized (0.03) 3.91
BIE B Income not subject to tax (0.10)
HAb Others 1.22 (2.19)
A ] B BB R 2 BEIE Tax charge at the Group’s effective rate
S 13.19 10.40
8. AT K 8. Placements with Other Banks
WL R S E Z BRI R B H 2 B Placements with other banks earned effective interest
FER-ZEANZIZRE H(CERFENFE T rates ranging from 0.0001% to 0.15% (2008: 0.01% to

NZEHR-FHAHZH) ° 5%) per annum.
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9.  FHP KRG 9. Loans and Advances to Customers
BEPFERREGRZEBREMNRATE S ZEY Loans and advances to customers earned effective
THEEAZET(CZER)NE: AR interest rates ranging from 0.24% to 30.00% (2008:
WAEESZZ=T) 0.99% to 30.00%) per annum.

2009 2008
Kt WM T L UL ST
Note MOP’000 MOP’000
(FE41)
(restated)
Yo O Loans and advances to customers 34,475,688 20,702,567
B o Trade bills 2,656,853 3,294,195
BEEH -~ BHNE S Gross loans, advances and trade
B b bills to customers 37,132,541 23,996,762
FET ) B Accrued interest 72,172 117,407
37,204,713 24,114,169
il : PRAE T Less: impairment allowance 6 (88,708) (57,453)
37,116,005 24,056,716
% PR~ Bk K E 5 AR SR T 4 B An analysis of the gross amount of loans, advances
T and trade bills to customers based on the usage is as
follows:
2009 2008
W TC WM Tt
MOP’000 MOP’000
(F3)
(restated)
T3 H¥EREH Industrial, commercial and financial purposes 32,168,063 18,615,433
PN iR Individual 2,307,625 2,087,134
B s Trade finance 2,656,853 3,294,195
BEEHR -~ BHZ LB Gross loans, advances and trade bills to
3k customers 37,132,541 23,996,762
O A BT P 54 2 Gross impaired loans before deducting
[SACR NS €] the individually assessed impairment

B AR allowance 67,281 61,064
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RoZZAET H=Z1—H » KBRTHEEE The fair values of collaterals that the Bank held
B 9P B sk = HK A 2 R P M S T — ' o relating to impaired loans at 31 December 2009
(ZFFT)4FE - WM HTNEEIG) o HH 5 amounted to MOP61 million (2008: MOP54 million).
FHE AT R E - The collaterals mainly consisted of bank deposits and
properties.
10. B AE DL 2 Ao (e =2 4 b % 10. Financial Assets at Fair Value through
Profit or Loss
2009 2008
WIMH T WM T
MOP’000 MOP’000
(%)
(restated)
WIRAB S DR WA fefE {2 Financial assets at fair value through
STl profit or loss:
Eikisvs ieis Quoted debt securities 5,254,279 7,979,310
2009 2008
WM T AL
MOP’000 MOP’000
(FEH)
(restated)
PLESATEBE M @iMIH3E  Financial assets at fair value through profit
PLR W2 Fe B =2 4x or loss analysed by category of issuer as
BEMT - follows:
B Government 720,488 958,836
R Corporate entities 718,891 113,293
SRAT T HL il 4 7ol B 35 Banks and other financial institutions 3,814,900 6,907,181
5,254,279 7,979,310
Fi A B AR 25 DLR WA Fo B A < 4 i E TS+ All financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

e 5 & - were held for trading purpose.
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1. F2EHWHBE 11. Held-to-maturity Investments
2009 2008
WP T WMo
MOP’000 MOP’000
(%)
(restated)
FHEZWHRE > Held-to-maturity investments, at amortised
FRHRGH AR cost:
i Quoted 2,349,607 1,402,839
Jo] o %52 Treasury bills 799,999 —
il : PRAE T Less: Impairment allowances (135,646) (135,646)
3,013,960 1,267,193
FRBEAT E R SR A Held-to-maturity investments at amortised
SRR H %G cost analysed by category of issuer as
mr follows:
B SR Government 799,999 —
R Corporate entities 283,166 146,887
SRAT R H A4 BB HEXE  Banks and other financial institutions 1,930,795 1,120,306
3,013,960 1,267,193
12. Wk B 12. Available-for-sale Investments
2009 2008
WML WP T
MOP’000 MOP’000
(HE%1)
(restated)
AL ERE - Available-for-sale investments:
kT Quoted 1,856,564 1,517,026
JE L Unquoted 21,388 25,345
1,877,952 1,542,371
BT R AT L Available-for-sale investments analysed by
HHEWMTE ¢ category of issuer as follows:
B Government — 591,159
AR Corporate entities 519,715 513,996
SRAT I HL il 4 il b 3 Banks and other financial institutions 1,358,237 437,216

1,877,952 1,542,371
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13.

vl nr gk 4R 2 A AR TS 25 T 5 A
HEE o AR R S 2k BT
B B 1 TR AT R IR AR o

By 24 ¥l

BB A 7 A T

The fair values of quoted available-for-sale
investments were based on quoted market prices. The
unquoted available-for-sale investments for which the
fair values cannot be measured reliably, have been

stated at cost less any impairment loss.

13. Subsidiaries

Particulars of the subsidiaries are as follows:

2225
HR CRUP A 7 e A i AR BT HEAN JBOHE ¥ 4 BB B>
Nominal value of Percentage of
Place of issued ordinary equity attributable Principal
Name incorporation  share capital to the Bank activities
HE 4%
Direct Indirect

WEAIERR A B bt MR

Seng Heng Development Company Limited  Hong Kong HK$2 100 — Property holding

TR B Be iy A R A 7 W WP B
(TR SRR 3 M A R A ] )

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Macau MOP50,000,000 99.60 0.4 Investment
(Macau) Capital Limited (formerly management
known as Seng Heng Capital Asia
Limited)

TSR ) B AREE A4 SR W WP BIREE ST
6 R ) B A A 4
TRty A7 A ])

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China ~ Macau MOP30,000,000 99.93 0.07 Pension fund
(Macau) Pension Fund Management management

Company Limited (formerly known as
Seng Heng Pension Fund Management

Company Limited)
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14. ¥ - BB Kkt 14. Property, Plant and Equipment
THRET  BIRRER BUR RS it
Furniture Motor
Land and and  vehicles and
buildings fixtures equipments Total
“RFIE WMRTFE BRM%TE WPRTE BT
+ZH=+—H 31 December 2009 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000
WA Cost:
PR\ At 31 December 2008 and
+ZH=Z+—HRK at 1 January 2009
—“EZFNFE—H—H as restated
(E5) 214,029 97,753 153,241 465,023
B Additions — 10,260 12,534 22,794
& Disposals — 470) (4,949) (5,419)

HERFNETZH At 31 December 2009

=+—H 214,029 107,543 160,826 482,398
2 Accumulated depreciation:
NFER)\AF At 31 December 2008 and

+ZA=Z+—H Rk at 1 January 2009

ZEZFNE—H—H as restated

(FE51) 42,024 59,968 111,154 213,146

A N B Provided during the year 4,005 6,819 16,769 27,593

& il Written back on disposals = (47) (3,267) (3,314)
REBFETTA At 31 December 2009

=+—H 46,029 66,740 124,656 237,425
W A Net carrying amount:
R ZFENAE At 31 December 2009

+=A=+—H 168,000 40,803 36,170 244,973
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LHEMT  BIRRFEE  dW R At
Furniture Motor
Land and and  vehicles and
buildings fixtures equipments Total
“EENETTNA WEWTE  WMAWTC WM%TE RP%T
=+—H 31 December 2008 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’0 00
BAE ¢ Cost:
i 2 et At 31 December 2007 and
+-H=+—HK at 1 January 2008
ZEZ)N\HE—H—H as restated
(FE3) 214,029 85,976 137,211 437,216
B Additions — 15,553 18,956 34,509
ik Disposals — (3,776) (2,926) (6,702)
e = Y3 At 31 December 2008
+-H=+—H as restated
(H31) 214,029 97,753 153,241 465,023
BEHE . Accumulated depreciation:
N_FELETZH At 31 December 2007 and
=t+—H K at 1 January 2008
ZEZ)\HE—H—H as restated
(%31) 38,019 55,080 99,764 192,863
AR N TR A Provided during the year 4,005 8,312 14,355 26,672
H B3 3 Written back on disposals — (3,424) (2,965) (6,389)
RERZRNE At 31 December 2008
+-H=+—H as restated
(F3) 42,024 59,968 111,154 213,146
I Th YA Net carrying amount:
HRENE At 31 December 2008
+-HA=+—H as restated

(%) 172,005 37,785 42,087 251,877
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15.

AR [ 4 o i ) 43 Z - b M A AT AT A geographical analysis of the Group’s land and

buildings is as follows:

2009 2008
WTH T WM ToT
MOP’000 MOP’000
(3 %1)
(restated)
M Macau 168,000 172,007
BeEWE 15. Investment Property
WM T

“EFWEFH=1+—H 31 December 2009 MOP’000
RZFF)E+H+H=+—HK At31 December 2008 and at 1 January 2009

“ERZNE—~A—H

JRAAE Cost 67,943

Hil e Accumulated depreciation (8,365)
W T R Net carrying amount 59,578
RZFF)NE+H=+—HMK, At31 December 2008 and at 1 January 2009,

“RZNE—H—H > Ik net of accumulated depreciation

RA 59,578

NI Depreciation provided during the year (717)

RERBZUETAZ+—H

At 31 December 2009, net of accumulated depreciation

kxR EH e 58,861
REEFFNETFA=Z1T—H At 31 December 2009

JRARAE Cost 67,943

2l Accumulated depreciation (9,082)
T T R Net carrying amount 58,861
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WWET o

ZEENEFH=Z=+—H 31 December 2008 MOP’000
RZFEFRLEFTFZH=+—HK At31 December 2007 and at 1 January 2008

“ERENFE—~A—H

JRAAE Cost 67,943

Bilhie Accumulated depreciation (7,648)
Wi AHE Net carrying amount 60,295
PoEFLFE+T+_H=+—HK At 31 December 2007 and at 1 January 2008,

ZRFRNFE—H—H > Wk net of accumulated depreciation

RAH 60,295

ERBETE Depreciation provided during the year (717)
RZFEFR)NEFFZH=+—H > At31 December 2008, net of accumulated depreciation

kR Rt 59,578
RoRENETZHA=Z+—H At 31 December 2008

BRAAE Cost 67,943

Aulre Accumulated depreciation (8,365)
W i A Net carrying amount 59,578

A E AW SRR o R
ZERMETZAZT R BRI ARME
HARRMEETFELE =T 8NTFLE—1Th
T(FFNE: WML T LA L TEZ

The investment property is situated in Hong Kong
and is held under medium term lease. The fair value
of the investment property on 31 December 2009 was
MOP$75,324,919 (2008: MOP$77,701,549).

—THEN+E) -
16. WX 16. Deposits from other Banks
2009 2008
WP T WP T8
MOP’000 MOP’000
(E5)
(restated)
Money market acceptances and
iSidiie % ATE 3543 bank balances 2,929,391 613,390
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17. %P 17. Deposits from Customers
2009 2008
BRI UdiLics a7
MOP’000 MOP’000
(H41)
(restated)
IR M A Ak R B Demand deposits and current accounts 3,458,377 2,426,575
fEEFER Savings deposits 6,226,195 4,612,365
E W MmN Rk Time and call deposits 32,935,137 29,703,456
42,619,709 36,742,396
B % P A7 BB AR ET & - % E T All deposits from customers are measured at amortised
HEBANRN PEEAZFEZ-2ASZ cost. The interest-bearing deposits from customers
HEH(ZERENE : BHZEHE—ZH N bore effective interest rates ranging from 0.01% to
ZNE—)FER - 5.5% (2008: 0.01% to 8.10%) per annum.
18. EHEBLH 18. Deferred Tax
BERIER E KA BERNZEHNT - The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities
during the year are as follows:
Y 4 BB e Deferred tax assets
HE SN
RIARBHEZ 2
REBUEH SHHEZ LT e
ik TR REBUEH WA wit
Unrealized loss Impairment
on financial allowance
assets at fair on held-to-
Revaluation through maturity
of derivatives profit & loss investments Total
T TP PR W
MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000
REZZNE—H—H At 1 January 2009 2,202 — 16,277 18,479
ENAMEEMRZELHIE  Deferred tax charged to the income
statement during the year (2,202) 9,100 — 6,898

REZFZNFEFZAZF—H  At31 December 2009 = 9,100 16,277 25,371
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WU
RBA REHZ #2
REBEH SHHEZ M EZ
itk TR RUBEH WA it
Unrealized loss Impairment
on financial allowance
assets at fair on held-to-
Revaluation through maturity
of derivatives profit & loss investments Total
RPHT RIHEF RIHEF 7 BT
MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000
REZZNE—~A—R At 1 January 2008 — — _ _
ERAFEENRZETHE Deferred tax charged to the income
statement during the year 2,202 — 16,277 18,479
RoFFNEFZA=Z+—H At 31 December 2008 2,202 — 16,277 18,479
WE ot B8 I £ 4% Deferred tax liabilities
wikihEsE e ] A
ZEMMS AR Badi ik T ] #it
Revaluation Excess of
reserve of impairment
available- allowances Accelerated Revaluation
for-sale in other tax of
investments reserves  depreciation derivatives Total
Wi WPRTX WARTIX WMWTR WMWTx
MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000
REZZBNE—H—H At 1 January 2009 4,534 4,543 4,557 — 13,634
ERERERNRZ Deferred tax charged to the income
EARE statement during the year (219) 325 933 10 1,049
FERAESRMBZ Deferred tax charged to the equity
EERIE during the year 29 = = = 29
RERBNE At 31 December 2009

+oAZ R 4,344 4,868 5,490 10 14712
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Y HE B £1 45 Deferred tax liabilities
WEnERE  eRRELZ e £
PA U By ik TR it
Revaluation Excess of
reserve of impairment
available- allowances Accelerated Revaluation
for-sale in other tax of
investments reserves  depreciation derivatives Total

WL WARTX O WMRTR WPWTR WMk
MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP*000 MOP’000

R_ZZ)\E—H—H At 1 January 2008 3,033 11,791 4,599 — 19423
EREREERNRZ Deferred tax charged to the income
EARE statement during the year 219 (7,248) @) — (7,071)
FERAEGMR Deferred tax charged to the equity
BRI during the year 1,282 — — — 1282
REERNE At 31 December 2008
+ZH=+—H 4,534 4,543 4,557 — 13,634
A AR B A R A A AR 2 B IE B 4R A0 W The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of
MATE-THEHEH LT B(ZFEF)\FE: approximately MOP601,570 (2008: MOPS,151,420) that
NE—+THE—TMNEZ=+0) w7 5HR G K are available indefinitely for offsetting against future
8 — A B RS T 2 R AR R B LA o AR taxable profits of a wholly-owned subsidiary. Deferred
SRR B AR REH &8 E K BB A 7] tax assets have not been recognised in respect of these
THCE W B 2 BLIE 1R > SOl R % S R losses, as it is not considered probable that there will
i S S L I 2 o be significant amount of taxable profits available

against which the tax losses can be utilised.

19. JBeAR 19. Share Capital
2009 2008
Bt ¥ H ii&lig 43|
Number Number
of share of share
BiiE Authorised:
— R 1,000,000 shares of MOP1,000 each

WM ¥ —T0 1,000,000 1,000,000
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20.

21.

I ¥ H
Number WM T T
of share MOP’000
CEAITROHE Issued and fully paid:
RN\ As at 31 December 2008
+ZA=+—H 150,000 150,000
R_ZEEZNELA Issued on 11 July 2009
+—H#f7 132,121 132,121
R ZERIE As at 31 December 2009
+=A=+—H 282,121 282,121
w4 20. Legal Reserve
PR 2 SR AT R AR B ) o AERAT R AR IR Under the Macau banking and insurance legislation,
P 2 B8 A W) E S e D M TN AR R B BAE the Bank and its Macau subsidiaries are required
Nzt ERE AN EE A 0 5 R to transfer to a legal reserve an amount equal to a
&2 LM A GRAT SR ILAE M Z W A H minimum of 20% of its annual profit after tax until
FZHOBITACHERAZ B ZH T AIE - the amount of the reserve is equal to 50% of their
4% TR > R O B AR TR AEAS B BB B respective issued and fully paid up share capital.
SESZTKFE s BEEZEMESZ SHMER Thereafter, transfers must continue at a minimum
ASRAT I HAE WP 2 [ B N | 4% H OB AT 8% annual rate of 10% until the reserve is equal to the
AR IE o LA 4 5 e B B B 2 e e Bank’s and its Macau subsidiaries’ respective issued
BRIB VLT A AIVEAT IR » M 5 A B o7 % o 7 47 and fully paid up share capital. This reserve is only
Fofr bR R G AR R BLA) o distributable in accordance with certain limited
circumstances prescribed by statute and will be
transferred from the annual profit after tax upon the
approval by the shareholders in the annual general
meeting.
2L O 21. Merger of Business

REZRFZELCA T —H > SRELERAT B TR )
TR AT IR B

Y T e
IS LTRSS SE BI=E 380
4 TG R b
ST E A

On 11 July 2009, the integration of SHB and ICBC
Macau Branch was successfully accomplished as
follows:

. SHB issued 132,121 new shares, and subsequent
to the issuance, the total number of issued
capital increased from 150,000 to 282,121

shares.
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- ILHBRMTKRBERF=H_T—H
IO R AT By o OB DB
BR=EMMATNANELTLEEZ=A
BN o0 R i O\ TR 4y
Tz 2 EFE2 I R - REF
FRELHTH > THRBMSTZEE
T R WP LA LT o

o TR ALARZ BB O S R A B Z @ EE
B A > A B R TS A A B
S 785 S+t 1 ) Ly i A DR W A
St 4 S0 T e S 2 o 1 S0 ) (955 i
fiek) -

o AT R TRERAT R M) B A R 2
F] 2 AL TR FOROE o R AR
TR AT AT Z IR HES = H 42 2
NHE== -
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ICBC acquired all the 132,121 newly
issued shares, the purchase consideration
for acquisition was in the form of cash
HKD388,570,317.82 and by contributing the
whole net assets of ICBC Macau branch. The net
assets value of ICBC Macau Branch as of 10 July
2009 were MOPS550 million.

The financial statements of both organisations
were prepared in accordance with the accounting
policies of each organisation, and the accounting
policies are in accordance with the International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”)
(which include all interpretations) issued by the

International Accounting Standards Board.

The new organisation named “Industrial and
Commercial Bank of China (Macau) Limited”
was established on the same day. After the
integration, ICBC’s shareholding of the Bank
increased to 89.33%

22. A AM Contingent Liabilities
2009 2008
WM T T WM ToT
MOP’000 MOP’000
(FE %)

(restated)
ARPEIE AR Undrawn loan commitments 8,212,710 20,432,838
EIEXTS Guarantees 1,192,543 869,358
HPEHABZARE Liabilities under letters of credit

on behalf of customers 262,175 510,898

9,667,428 21,813,094
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23. BEAE R

ACSR I DLE A R L BRI e AT eSE
MU Z AIRER 25— B \EARE o ALE AR
AT {4 AL B R 4 R AR R 3 2 B )
O T :

23.

Operating Lease Commitments

The Group leases land and buildings under operating
lease arrangement with leases negotiated for terms
ranging from 1 to 8 years. The Group’s had total future
commitments lease receivables under non-cancellable

operating leases with its tenants falling due as follows:

2009 2008
BRI WP ToT
MOP’000 MOP’000
(H41)

(restated)
—EPN Within one year 18,120 23,265
WA 2 AR N In the second to fifth years, inclusive

(BHFEERS) 44,288 59,408
AR After five years 14,845 9,586
77,253 92,259

24, Rk 4w e & A4
A2 [ B AT A 4k OB R R S R R
BRLAMIES MR 2 R AP E o

$L 1) 449 2 B D A — TEUE Y 1) 22 e AR S T
Z Bl -

T 2 Y — AR AR 9 DR S (AR R
M TRZAHEE

24.

Derivative Financial Assets and Liabilities

The Group uses the derivative financial instruments
for trading or for hedging future fluctuations in

interest rates and foreign exchange rates.

Swaps are contracts in which two parties exchange
cash flows on a specified notional amount for a

predetermined period.

Forwards are contractual obligations to buy or sell a
financial instrument on a future date at a specified

price.
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2009
EE 3 & ¥ HERUB A4
Notional Notional
Amount Assets Amount Liabilities

WMBTL WPR T RMWTIC W% T
MOP’000  MOP’000  MOP’000  MOP’000

HBIBEAGH Forward currency contracts 1,329,067 8,945 1,296,235 3,079
) 2 i 1 Interest rate swap — — 295,549 17,478
72 301 2 175 Forward rate agreements = _ _ _
) 2T RE Interest rate options 39,939 13,151 — —
1,369,006 22,096 1,591,784 20,557
2008

EE 1 ¢ %A HEUB fafi

Notional Notional
Amount Assets Amount Liabilities

WP T WMW T RPRTE BMW TR
MOP’000  MOP’000  MOP’000  MOP’000

(%) (HE3)) (%)) (%))
(restated) (restated) (restated) (restated)

wHEEELH Forward currency contracts 1,520,859 3,732 2,431,735 7,486

) R P 3 Interest rate swap 79,824 — 399,120 24,409

2 ) R ek Forward rate agreements 700,000 4,169 700,000 2,095

VAE=s:p: Interest rate options — — — —

2,300,683 7,900 3,530,855 33,990

25. A s g S 2k 25. Fair Value Hierarchy

A A TR B N oA A 4 6 1 Al e 4 ik T EL 4y The Group uses the following hierarchy for
BTG : determining and disclosing the fair value of financial

instruments by valuation technique:

B AR TS R O BUAE RE DL A Bk Level 1: quoted (unadjusted) prices in active
S R (GRRH) 5 markets for identical assets or liabilities;

BRE s M BT B Level 2:  other techniques in which all inputs having
ZAREHERKRBESZ 28 a significant effect on reported fair values
WHTHESKBEBEE TEE are based on definite information directly
B or indirectly observable in the market;

BERE o [ EEZEA IR R BT Level 3:  techniques using significant inputs that
BAE B2 Hiflg o are not based on observable market

information.
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TN FARE i A DL A R AR Z A The following table shows an analysis of financial
T LT 08T ¢ instruments recorded at fair value by level of the fair

value hierarchy:

B B W=
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

WPWTE  WPRTEX WP T
MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000

RBEBAETH=+—H At 31 December 2009

T A Available-for-sale financial assets:

— B EERS — Debt securities 1,031,971 824,593 _

— RER SR — Equity securities — — —
TR DR A R Z Financial assets at fair value through

SRR — AREES profit or loss — Debt securities 2,397,062 2,857,217 —
it A e Derivative financial assets — 22,096 —
ik 4masm Derivative financial liabilities — (20,557) —
RFENETZA=+—H At 31 December 2008
WAk B A E Available-for-sale financial assets:

— AEEES — Debt securities 1,176,032 343,993 —

— R RS — Equity securities 965 —
IR 2R DL R A R 2 Financial assets at fair value through

SREE — ARERE profit or loss — Debt securities 6,981,957 997,353 —
A A e Derivative financial assets — 7,900 —
IR A =N Derivative financial liabilities — (33,990) —

26. bR BEaEPLH M BRI 26. Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies

i TEDAM » AEEEESAESH T EA The Group’s principal financial instruments, other
HAEREP SRS RYE 55 s MBEGEUR than derivatives, comprise loans, advances and trade
WA REEZSRERE s TR ERE s FHE bills to customers, deposits from banks and customers,
B ARG s e RENER - financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,

available-for-sale investments, held-to-maturity

investments and cash and short term deposits.

ANAE B R B A IER R A s P REIHE R The Group also enters into derivative transactions,
I ) B WA A A A A T DA L R A including principally interest rate swaps, interest rate
Tl s Ak 2 1) 2 L i I A e SR B o options and forward currency contracts. The purpose

is to manage the interest rate and currency risks
arising from the Group’s operations and its sources of

finance.
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AR B AT B SR B A B 5 8 AR5 > B b g
WY R S SR > T 2 52 R A R M ST B
PR > Wakar 7 BT RE R i b - R
o B e b 22 By o M B 4 TR B AR B DL AR
Il F e B SRR o B R B R
JEN I L 7 e A e e S e S o S
FUE 2 B 0 B ) S R A B SR > 9 TTIL R
R~ 2~ BORR ) S £ B4 B
T e A L i 1 AR 0 B 3

AC SR B AT 2 A b T T S i 45 L B (B
B JE I e 3R B ) ~ A7 B R B R 3 B
I o P T i A %l A R B SR B bk
A IR > A BB A R o ACHR 1 3 2 0
AT TR Z o al BOROR B i B 2.5 AR
ke o

(a) B

i 5 R i 455 A/ I e ) % L e 45 T 9B ¢
Z T AR A A 2 s 1R R R

Hh b B

7 4R [ 7 S IR TR S A R M R 35 B 5L
WMBRI KB ERBEZHE - AEH T
BT T A W FE A BT > p S Y
B B O A R R P R
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The Group has written risk management policies
and guidelines, which set out its overall business
strategies, its tolerance for risk and its general risk
management philosophy, and has established processes
to monitor and control hedging transactions in a
timely and accurate manner. Such written policies are
reviewed annually to ensure that the Group’s policies
arid guidelines are appropriate and adhered to. The
board of directors is responsible for the overall risk
management approach and for approving the risk
strategies and principles. The Asset and Liability
Committee has the responsibility for developing risk
strategies and implementing principles, frameworks,
policies and limits. It is responsible for managing
and monitoring fundamental risk issues and to make

relevant risk decisions.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are market risk (i.e. foreign currency
risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity
risk. The board of directors reviews and establishes
policies for managing each of these risks and they are
summarised below. The Group’s accounting policies
in relation to derivatives are set out in note 2.5 to the

financial statements.

(a) Market risk

Market risk is the risk of loss arising from
movements in observable market variables such

as foreign exchange rates and interest rates.

Foreign currency risk

The Group takes on exposure to effects of
fluctuations in the prevailing foreign currency
exchange rates on its financial positions and cash
flows. The Group has set limits on positions by
currency. Positions are independently monitored

against the approved limits on a daily basis.
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ACER I 2 T A A B RO
WIAME & 2 2 RV TN E

An analysis of the currency concentration
positions of the financial assets, financial
liabilities and forward foreign exchange

contracts of the Group is as follows:

ik L i Jefb it
MOP HKD Uusb Others Total
REZENAE At 31 December 2009
+ZA=4—H (MOP million)
(MW EEL)
i3 Assets
JEFE B4 RAFH A48 Cash and balances with banks and
T4 R R deposits with monetary authority 1,270 874 34 174 2,35
FRRFS Placements with other banks = 886 695 = 1,581
BRI R EHK Loans and advances to customers 2,160 16,973 17,948 35 37,116
WREBD WA AWM Financial assets at fair value
ZEHEE through P&L = 3,431 1,464 359 5,254
A ERE Available-for-sale investments — 629 1,247 2 1,878
REFMHRE Held-to-maturity investments = 870 1,344 800 3,014
ik SRR Derivative financial assets = — 17 5 7
JE W 3 e S 5 Receivables and other assets 60 153 76 1 290
GEAT Total assets 3,490 23,816 22,825 1,376 51,507
fifs Liabilities
REfiH Deposits from customers 5,867 21,556 14,007 1,190 42,620
GE 2§ Deposits from other banks 35 2,889 5 — 2,929
R AR Derivative financial liabilities — = 19 2 P
A E Other liabilities 160 2,318 138 2 2,618
AEAT Total liabilities 6,062 26,763 14,169 1,194 48,188
i Net position (2,572 (2,947) 8,656 182 3,319
EMINE A A F Forward foreign exchange contracts
net notional position — — 3 3 —
B Currency swap — 1,597 (2,219 627 5
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WP oy EiL Jb fit
MOP HKD LIN)] Others Total
REZENE At 31 December 2008 as restated
FZAZ—RET (MOP million)
(WL ¥ B )
i3 Assets
GBS KGR ¥ Cash and balances with banks and deposits
T4 b PR 17 2 with monetary authority 694 2,057 51 325 3,127
VAidTES Placements with other banks 35 1,432 168 289 1,924
VISKET 06 % ¢ Loans and advances to customers 1,840 12,327 9,817 7 24,057
EREBRMARBEM  Financial assets at fair value
ZEMER through P&L - 4,149 3214 616 7979
R Available-for-sale investments 510 14 1,018 — 1,542
BEFM ARG Held-to-maturity investments — 827 440 — 1,267
ks E Derivative financial assets — 4 1 3 8
JE W R L f i Receivables and other assets 60 7 24 41 197
Fig At Total assets 3,139 20,882 14,733 1,347 40,101
ffg Liabilities
Rt Deposits from customers 4423 23,822 7,440 1,057 36,742
£ Deposits from other banks 67 17 516 13 613
ik ama Derivative financial liabilities - 2 k) - 34
HERE Other liabilities 125 192 4 — 359
AR Total liabilities 4,615 24,033 8,030 1,070 37,748
B Net position (1,476) (3,151) 6,703 277 2,353
SRS £ AT 4 Forward foreign exchange contracts
net notional position (51 52 359 (363) (3)
R K B Sensitivity Analysis
A 45 B i 3 D), BRI B 2 T R SR The Group has currency exposures arise
FMEZ B & REHES - FREHK from cash and short term funds, loans and
Bk VL B ) 36 ] PRk i e e 2 B W advances to customers, deposits from banks and
JRU B o HT R g R R A AR I v 2 £ customers which are denominated in Hong Kong
P JEL B AR A > 0 A 2 5 AURK RE A AT o dollars and United States dollars which have

been pegged to Patacas. The board of directors
considered the Group’s exposure to foreign
currency risk was minimal and a sensitivity

analysis was not presented as a result.
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P

QESI YL SRS SR 32 S
Bl i il TR 2 A AR I A
o

7 45 [ R 47 DL B R % L I T R R
Uy IS IR DL K Bl R S
25 VT [ US4 5 Y T 4 I B A o AR
I 42 B A e 2 L B O AT A
B o % 45 BT ot A 8 20 0 AL 2 AT
RE > BEAL > I8 R AR B T Z R MR E
RO o

TRENARA R A G2E > B E
W, 1 B R B A (NTD)
ZURBE ST o % HIRSR F A B A
% R SR > TIORGOS A
S H A A R R DU

2009
e 5 )

U1 R 5 0 A 2 8

Change in Change in projected net

basis points

interest income

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk arises from the possibility that
changes in interest rates will affect future cash

flows or the fair values of financial instruments.

The Group takes on exposure to the effects of
fluctuations in the prevailing levels of market
interest rates on its financial position and cash
flows. Interest margins may increase or decrease
as a result of such changes. Interest rate risk
is managed within risk limits approved by
management. Limits are set for each maturity
band, in addition, to an aggregate limit, for the

aggregate position of the Group.

The table below shows the sensitivity analysis
on net interest income (NII) of a reasonably
possible movement in interest rates; i.e., a 50
basis points increase/decrease in current interest
rates. The figures represent the effect of the
pro forma movements in net interest income
based on the scenario projected and the Group’s

current interest rate risk profile.

2008
B

Changes in

FEI A BB By
Change in projected net

basis points interest income

WP WT e Lk o STH
MOP’000 MOP’000
(FE3)
(restated)
+50 (26,777) +50 (13,197)
-50 26,777 -50 13,197

AAT o %35 8 B0t i 355 LR B S T
32 B A B K AL (AR KA D) > BEBX
AR DA A S 8] 2 o e A B e ) B 4 4
S A BRI B o S TR 9 ) S 1 A
L L

Mainly for managing the above market risks,
a risk management team (“the team”), is
established to monitor investment and treasury
activities in accordance with the Group’s risk
management guidelines and to report exceptions

to the management.
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B 7 A % B L R R (= kRl
F o~ FEARRE - 5 RIRED AREAGZ
VAL > Bl P £ 2 DU Bl R
HARATZ B GG AT AT > DAL
S 1 R e B e k> e WL i 5 5 B i A
WA R A R AT 2 B R LR AL > BRARL
75 BT IR 1 R A R R
I B JE Y PR 5] o

R 7 T L A 4 T R
PEA ] 528 1Bl Wy At vt S S A B 2 L
B > A 5 2 B AR
E

S T 1R P A58 JBE B2 % i 2 L £
A (T e 1) e AL RSy 0k 260 JL i
O L A0 A R A A A S D
B Z A L e B A o e I £ L P
BPEH > T52 RE S s R E R —
IR > BT O AKE (RE
BT ZATAEOKFE) » SRE
] (ARG 0 3%+ 22 5 B R A 30)) 2 9]
Al K 1 o 3 OB AR 4 2 A B
R AR A B o B > A B0 L B
a2 BBV

JE e L A R R R A R 5
o AHAr BT BR 2 AR i A SRR
LR IR S Ml A R~ B R A T B 4 B
20T B 5 2 4 ) VT R R H AR TR
BlZ 54k - 98 2 BN i B3 AT 2 Hh BL2E
Lok Z AL > 38 U7 B A B 2 E
W o R H 5 TR AR AT R
2o H WP BB ERZ R
LT o eF5 A 8 AT BRI R R A o b
Bb > A R W B i TR
% B A 5 1 2 VB > AT B AR Al 3T T
Bl 2 T 35 IR o 3 b o R AR A S S
SEAE 5 Mk IR B 2 PT RE R bR > (HR AR IE
W T LT P JRE 0 AR 8 5 T
S

In addition to a continuous monitoring risk
limits (e.g. stop loss limits, position limits,
credit limits) and the daily profit or loss of
all portfolios, the team is also responsible for
performing high level reviews of the Bank’s
portfolios for optimisation of risk and return,
and for keeping track of the changes in the
market as well as in the composition of the
assets and liabilities of the Bank. Where
necessary, the team will make recommendations
to the management for changes of strategies and

risk guidelines.

The team reviews risk elements associated
with investments in view of changes in market
conditions or in the asset/liability conditions
of the Group and makes recommendations to

management if necessary.

Risk management techniques such as Value-
at-Risk (“VaR”) based on historical simulation
and portfolio stress testing, are used to identify,
measure and control foreign currency risk and
interest rate risks of the Group’s investments.
VaR measures the expected maximum loss over
a given time interval (i.e. 10 trading days) at a
95% confidence level based on historical data of
one year. The board sets a limit on total VaR of

the Group and monitor VaR on a daily basis.

VaR is a statistical measure of risks and has
limitations associated with the assumptions
employed. Historical simulation assumes that
actual observed historical changes in market
indices, such as interest rates, foreign exchange
rates, reflect possible future changes. This
implies that the approach is vulnerable to sudden
changes in market behaviour. The use of a
10-day holding period assumes that the positions
can be unwounded in 10 trading days and the
holding period may be insufficient at times of
severe illiquidity. Also, VaR does not necessarily
reflect all aspects of risks that affect the price
of financial instruments and may underestimate
real market risk exposure. In addition, VaR does
not factor in the possibility of catastrophic risk
but the use of stress testing for abnormal market

conditions can mitigate this limitation.
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R ARREZ BT R BEEENT

The VaRs for investments of the Group during

the year were as follows:

RHHE Trading portfolio
2009 2008
T it} it a8 B R
Average Highest Lowest Average Highest Lowest
WML WML WML RMRTR O RMRTE O RMRTR
MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000
SMER K Foreign exchange risk 25,523 33,737 14,707 22,697 33,712 18,795
FRBRERAEE  Interest rate and
AR equity price risk 8,643 15,149 1,559 11,849 16,712 5,130
ROAGRRERAR  Total VaR on trading
portfolio 27,220 36,699 14,250 25,141 36,818 21,550
It ik Non-trading portfolio
2009 2008
R it} i1 a8 B 1
Average Highest Lowest Average Highest Lowest
RIWETE WML RMBTR WPIWTX WM RPN TR
MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP000 MOP000 MOP000
SR B Foreign exchange risk 2,007 312 1,179 3,318 3,933 1,948
FIRRR Interest rate risk 18,886 23,949 10,214 21,206 24,356 16,207
FRHAGRRER  Total VaR on non-
i trading portfolio 17,835 22,004 10,003 19,458 22,254 15,176

1181 31 R i PR 3 2 B e A 2 A0 PR %
W 1R % D TB) i o7 W B A A 2 i KB
A8 o 1 ) el B AP A Sl A S 7 L B
AR > PRI P 3R 2 B
FE A 2 TEALBOE o BEA - BEAR R K
AR Z R\ B AR & > T Z R
B 5 A JE B A fEL R b R 1R — H B -

VaR for each risk factor is the independently
derived largest potential loss due to fluctuations
solely in that risk factor. The individual VaR
did not add up to the total VaR as there was
diversification effect due to correlation amongst
the risk factors. Moreover, in respect of the
highest and lowest VaRs during the year, the
highest and lowest VaRs in each market did not

necessarily occur on the same day.
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(b) B E 4B (b) Liquidity risk
it B A A A B A A S — I T % B R Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will
71 ZAE VLR A RE T 2 391 IRF 4301 B A ik I be unable to meet its payment obligations
Z BB o Ky AR LR B > BR A% O A R R when they fall due under normal and stress
BEAD > HLE O R L oL E & 2R IR circumstances. To limit this risk, management
FHEENFERHES  PBHEXR has arranged diversified funding sources in
RABL S i B KB 4 o MAS A T addition to its core deposit base, manages
Bl 4 i K v ACHE A 2 W) ek R assets with liquidity in mind, and monitors
i > WA FER B REIE S - future cash flows and liquidity on a daily basis.
ERLE A R R BRI E &Rk This incorporates an assessment of expected
AR 1 1BV - cash flows and the availability of high grade
collateral which could be used to secure
additional funding if required. Management
monitor the liquidity and solvency position on a
daily and weekly basis respectively.
R EE - A R ABERR An analysis of the maturity profile of the
K ARYE Z LB AT T - Group’s assets, liabilities, contingent liabilities
and undrawn loan commitments is as follows:
=)
. WLEE —4Y L
ZWE oA FhdE bty
VY] Y] Dl BiEE 2Mn it
More More
than than
Less 3 months 1 year
than  andupto  andup to Over
3 months 12 months 5 years 5 years Undated Total
REBZAAE At 31 December 2009
FZAZt—H (MOP million)
(BT )
B Assets
A B4 A B % Cash and balances with banks
B RATE R and deposits with
T monetary authority 2,352 — — — — 2,352
e Placements with other banks 1,581 — = - — 1,581
% PR R Loans and advances to
customers 4,473 3,876 12,672 16,147 (52) 37,116
EREHLRWARBME  Financial assets at fair
ZEMERE value through P&L 1,895 2,374 985 = = 5,254
Ak A B Available-for-sale investments — 120 1,592 145 21 1,878
RN P RY Held-to-maturity investments 910 570 1,474 60 3,014
QXA Derivative financial assets 9 = 13 — — )
JE e E R S i Receivables and other assets 120 13 — — 157 290
Bt Total assets 11,340 6,953 16,736 16,352 126 51,507
i Liabilities
RPRR Deposits from customers 39,522 2,972 126 = = 42,620
TS Deposits from other banks 2,929 — — = — 2,929
ik 2maE Derivative financial liabilities 3 4 14 = - 21
HAb 5 Other liabilities 39 131 2,011 = 437 2,618
B A Total liabilities 42,493 3,107 2,151 — 437 48,188
Bk / (A B Net assets/(liabilities) (31,153) 3,846 14,585 16,352 (311) 3,319
BHAR Contingent liabilities 813 633 5 3 — 1,454
RIS A Undrawn loan commitments — 8,213 — — — 8,213
WHAERAENT Total contingent liabilities and
commitments 813 8,846 5 3 — 9,667
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=MA
NEE DL
WA SR #1ik Y7
UYL U Dl BRI L it
More More
than than
Less 3 months 1 year
than  andupto  andup to Over
3 months 12 months § years 5 years Undated Total
2 L At 31 December 2008
FZAZt—REg as restated (MOP million)
(MW EEL)
B Assets
A B4 R % Cash and balances with
Kitp AT TR banks and deposits with
pes ¢ monetary authority 3,127 — — — — 3,127
[ GE v Placements with other banks 1,924 — — - — 1,924
% PSR Loans and advances to
customers 4,637 3,830 6,319 9,263 8 24,057
WBBRURMARER  Financial assets at fair
ZEMEE value through P&L 5,140 1,769 945 125 — 7,979
kB Available-for-sale investments 510 194 426 390 2 1,542
BEFMHEE Held-to-maturity investments 610 136 469 52 — 1,267
ik SmEE Derivative financial assets 4 4 — — — 8
JE MR JE o 3 Receivables and other assets 135 14 18 8 22 197
B At Total assets 16,087 5,947 8,177 9,838 5 40,101
i Liabilities
KEfi Deposits from customers 35,219 1,335 168 20 — 36,742
FEZ = Deposits from other banks 613 — — — — 613
ik 2ma K Derivative financial liabilities 28 2 4 — — 34
Hibe Other liabilities 131 0 1 2 213 359
ABAE Total liabilities 35,991 1,343 179 22 213 37,748
B/ (A8 FE Net assets/(liabilities) (19,904) 4,604 7,998 9,816 (161) 2,353
HAHAR Contingent liabilities 1,100 224 56 — — 1,380
R R A Undrawn loan commitments 501 10,918 1,744 7,210 60 20,433
KAAERAEST Total contingent liabilities and
commitments 1,601 11,142 1,800 7,210 60 21,813
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TR R EHR E 20 [ AT A4
il FUAE - A% DL R AR S 2 AT A i
A B of DA S R B Y 5 0 2 A7 2 Gl T R
TR ACHE [ B AT 2 BLarifi i o R 9 R
ZEFROHRBITBZ B E&RE > W
74 45 [ S A L 2 A AT B B i

The table below presents the cash flow payables
by the Group under non-derivative financial
liabilities, derivatives financial liabilities that
will be settled on a net basis and derivative
financial instruments that will be settled on

gross basis by remaining contractual maturities

(EE I P bl U 2 gerg i1 at the end of the reporting period. The amounts
disclosed in the table are the contractual
discounted cash flows, whereas the Group
manages the inherent liquidity risk based on
expected undiscounted cash flows.

=]
WEE DL
ZWR 2R B4 AMn
P P Dl SitEE i3y it
More than ~ More than
Less 3 months 1 year
than  andupto  andup to Over
3 months 12 months § years 5 years Undated Total
REBENE At 31 December 2009
FZHZEF-H (MOP million)
(W T )
Rt Deposits from customers 32,549 7,010 2,982 126 — 42,667
EEeE s Deposits from other banks 2,937 — — — — 2,937
DT RBR A RAEA Debt issued and
5 borrowed funds - 30 76 2,02 - 2,138
AfAT Total liabilities 35,486 7,040 3,058 2,158 — 47,142
RZZEN\E At 31 December 2008
+ZA=+—H S as restated (MOP million)
(Y )
VASNeS Deposits from customers 35,257 1,342 174 2 — 36,795
EEZax¢ Deposits from other banks 655 — — — — 655
DBIEBER R R Debt issued and
%4 borrowed funds — — — — — _
AT Total liabilities 35,912 1,342 174 ) — 37,450
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=MA
WEE DL
=) . ot i B4 L
Y] Py D BRI et it
More More
than than
Less 3 months 1 year
than  andupto  andup to Over
3 months 12 months 5 years 5 years Undated Total
KAMAETRZBAHE  Derivatives cash flow (2009)
(2009) (RMEEEL)  (MOP million)
DI R 4B Derivative financial instruments
IR Settled on net basis ) (6) ) — - (18)
D EEZ 4R Derivative financial instruments
Th Settled on gross basis
WABE Total inflow 2,620 — — — — 2,620
Lt A Total outflow (2,625) — — — — (2,625)
FERETHZHARE  Derivatives cash flow (2008)
(2008) (MRMEEEL)  (MOP million)
WA H 2 A48 Derivative financial instruments
Th Settled on net basis 1 104 180 32 — 37
WHHAEE 2 R4 Derivative financial instruments
T4 Settled on gross basis
WAL Total inflow 2,696 120 — — — 2,816
it A Total outflow (2,698) (120) — — — (2.818)
(c) fREHBE (¢) Credit risk
HEEREANEFERGHFEL S H Credit risk is the risk that a customer or
VI RE A A A 2 U R AL counterparty in a transaction may default and
[ 8k~ B 5 mE MG - arises mainly from lending, trade finance and

treasury activities undertaken by the Group.
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A4 R A A BT B A AR )R 0 DA
B~ B B A BRI o ACBRAT ZAF
BB OEERZ R - AR 8]
WA - MR - R B AT
R ITHARRER s WHEAEF R
R B Z S R AL o BB R A5
T3 2% B R 0 L A B A
B o 5 BB I R A B AC SR £
BRI S B 5 BB K R R
B B S Al $2 ) 3 (490 0 985 % K o L i
B\ B vp g i) 5 0 R 2 AE R E TS
W43 o DLE DR B B 4 % B ¢ e o
M o PRIREAR £ 2 457 B 5 36 WA v 8 S S 0k
AN iN=S=

A 45 [ — B DL 7 B A B AL A £ L
B o i o 3 BRI AR A A > IS
JBE R H 7 3 R AR UL > B R R
HEAARPBERE -

175 2 S K A FE B

TARIURRHE R A R H (B4 R4
TR B 2 ek fs BB o S R B
DU 5% 0 0 A A T e K Y B 2
P2 JDE L ot A

The Group has a credit risk management process
to measure, monitor and control credit risk.
The lending authority of the Bank consists of
the credit committee, general manager, credit
department heads, marketing department
heads, chief executive officer and directors who
have extensive banking experience, and have
the ultimate authority in approving loans and
advances to customers. Each level within the
authority hierarchy has its own lending limit
which is specified in the credit memorandum.
The hierarchy of credit authority which approves
credit is in compliance with the Group’s credit
policy; exposures are monitored against credit
limits and other control limits (such as large
exposures and concentration limits); segregation
of duties in key credit functions is in place to
ensure separate credit control and monitoring;
management and recovery of problem credits is

handled by an independent work-out team.

The Group manages its credit risk within a
conservative framework. Its credit policy is
regularly revised, taking into account factors
such as prevailing business and economic
conditions, regulatory requirements and its
capital resources.

Maximum exposure to credit risk

The table below shows the maximum exposure
to credit risk for the components at the end of
the reporting period, including derivatives. The
maximum exposure is based on the carrying
amounts as reported in the statement of
financial position, before the effect of mitigation
through the use of master netting and collateral

agreements.
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T Kl e 40 T R J ot 4
Gross Gross
maximum maximum
exposure exposure
“RRIE RN\
2009 2008
WML W ToT
MOP’000 MOP’000
(F%)
(restated)
Fe3 A E 33 Balances with other banks 668,907 1,047,144
A A PAAE R K Deposits with monetary authority 1,001,825 447,752
7€ WA ik [ 3 31 08 Placements with other banks 1,580,739 1,924,079
BB R WA AUEME  Financial assets at fair value through
Z A Th A profit or loss 5,254,279 7,979,310
& PRk BaK Loans and advances to customers 37,116,005 24,056,716
Tt ERE Available-for-sale investments 1,877,952 1,542,371
T Al B Financial derivatives assets 22,096 7,900
M ISR I e Al Receivables and other assets 290,298 197,569
FEFWHIKE Held-to-maturity investments 3,013,960 1,267,193
D Total 50,826,061 38,470,034
PR Guarantees 1,192,543 869,358
EREHBZAE Liabilities under letters of credit on
behalf of customers 262,175 510,898
RIEBUE R R IE Undrawn loan commitments 8,212,710 20,432,838
ks Total 9,667,428 21,813,094
15 &M b5t Total credit risk exposure 60,493,489 60,283,128
Vel a28 3 Credit quality
() DMEEEESBEZEEERME (i)  Distribution of gross loans and advances
XA to customers by credit quality are
summarised as follows:
2009 2008
Mzt WM T W ToT
Note MOP’000 MOP’000
(FEH)
(restated)
A I Ko AR A Neither past due nor impaired (i) 36,778,227 23,830,918
CUaM s /BB IE  Past due or individually
VA 8 45 impaired (ii) 354,314 165,844
it Total 37,132,541 23,996,762
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Mt i) ¢ AR B A % A B AR R Note (i):  The Group has unrated exposures for
WAk o all these loans.

Miatci) : BB HIR . CRMEE Note (ii): At the end of the reporting period, the
AR Z R ARG R fair value of the collateral of impaired
“THAEEBEGZEEY loans includes mortgages of MOP25
FE(CBZ)NE WM million (2008: MOP17 million) and
W—TLHHE) KEW fixed deposits of MOP36 million
FERWEME =T NEH (2008: MOP36 million).

TE(Z T )R W
=TAHEH#HTL) -

() B R O B R A = % (ii)  Distribution of gross loans and advances
5 BR 3R S R 8 A 2 4 e N e that were past due but not impaired
T at the end of the reporting period are

summarised as follows:

i =22 AE utn
=+ AtH JutH UL it

Less than 31-60 61-90  More than
30 days days days 90 days Total
N oEENE At 31 December 2009
+ZH=+—H (MOP?000)
(BPMHTE)
% PR R Loans and advances to
customers 257,599 5,305 2,977 14,939 280,820
BERRNE At 31 December 2008 as
+-H=+—H restated (MOP’000)
(FF)) (BRMHTo0)
% PR R AR Loans and advances to
customers 92,039 11,344 2,279 15,644 121,306
AEN s AR E N A RS EE During the year, no financial assets of the Group
B o have been renegotiated.
TGP s e Hofb A5 £2 4271 Collaterals and other credit enhancements
A e 2 W BT T 2 I 4 e T R Ey The amount and type of collateral required
AR FPRGHTF 2= 8RB eEE - BUE depends on an assessment of the credit risk of
ZIAP S R A RATE R R E the counterparty. The main types of collateral

obtained are bank deposits and properties.
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(d)

(©

B B A o 2 > AR R A B
i e B SR AIAMIGAT i o 3 A K A
TR < 70 I G A IR Z K i T
o

AR I 2 B N £ M [ 3 o
e ek S DA AR s R R e R o —
JBeT o ACGE AN A Tl 4 S A
EBIE -

TR IR o AR SR I I J0 e o] i

I A v

TR > AR R E KPR
ARG AR B R AL 2 31% i AEfS
BRI B o A DL R P O
TE G i R A7 K DA AR B o A R
N R AR > B P
Z A5 B B AR B o

wAEH

AREEGEARE M TEH MR T HER
ACHR B S AN R ET 2 EACER > T A
AR [0 A e 5 £ X AR SRR AR A L R
VIS 36 S B P v ORI -

(@)

(e

Management monitors the market value of
collateral, requests additional collateral in
accordance with the underlying agreement,
and monitors the market value of collateral
obtained during its review of the adequacy of

the allowance for impairment losses.

It is the Group’s policy to dispose of repossessed
properties in an orderly fashion. The proceeds
are used to reduce or repay the outstanding
claim. In general, the Group does not occupy

repossessed properties for business use.

As the end of the reporting period, the Group

has no repossessed assets.

Concentration of risks

As at the end of the reporting period, the Group
has concentration risk due to credit exposure
to one single customer, which accounted for
31% of the Group’s loan portfolio. The Group’s
measures for mitigating the risk include
solicitation of tangible collaterals or pledged
deposits from the borrower. After taking into
account of the collaterals and pledged deposits,
the credit exposure to this particular customer

reduced to nil.

Capital management

The primary objective of the Group’s capital
management are to ensure that the Group
complies with externally imposed capital
requirements and that the Group maintains
strong credit ratings and healthy capital ratios
in order to support its business and to maximise

shareholders’ value.
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2S5 T A L AR A AR e A R
B JL 3% ) o e e 2 AR L TR R o Ty
A A AR > AR I TR B 1k
JBe SR B8 2 B R A I R B IR AR
RBITEARB I - HIY - BOR IR
SO0 A B SN SR A o AL A T AR
R ~ 0 o Al S 7 B AR TS R B
RERARFRAKF

AR ACHRE [ 43 S e D) BNy A SR T
BEARRERAEAZNA\KBEHZT=
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The Group manages its capital structure and
makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in
economic conditions and the risk characteristics
of its activities. In order to maintain or adjust
the capital structure, the Group may adjust the
amount of dividend payment to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders or issue capital
securities. No changes were made in the
objectives, policies and processes from the
previous years. The management monitor the
capital adequacy on a monthly basis, based
on the information on total capital, total risk-

weighted assets and the capital adequacy ratio.

During the year, the Group properly complied
with the externally imposed capital requirement

(PBEAR) L EARER - of a minimum capital adequacy ratio of 8% and
13% (after the integration) respectively.
2009 2008
(FE5)
(restated)
BAFELR Capital adequacy ratio 14.76% 13.93%
A e (f)  Fair values

AENE B 5 2 S 2 A TR 2 A R AR
T3 AR I 3 S R BT R AR A o
CRERENE > T HARAHA
L 5 i AT 5 > T R B
AR -

A 6 T < b T B I A 4 B T 3 58 B (4]
WMGHNR AT T H) > A R R
FARGAE T 33 AE -

A 4 4 b 2 % R IR OB B R AT B
Al 06 5 90 Tl 2 L O R AELAEL o O A A
B BT Z SRR b SRR T 24 4% -

By FAIEEE » R IR s ABEEZ
S A K R FY DA RBHESIIR

The fair value of financial instruments traded
in active markets is based on market prices
quoted at the end of the reporting period. For
financial assets, the current bid price is quoted;
for financial liabilities, the current ask price is
quoted.

The fair value of financial instruments that are
not traded in an active market (for example,
over-the-counter derivatives) is determined by
using valuation techniques.

Derivative financial assets and liabilities are
recorded at fair values obtained from discounted
cash flow model valuation techniques. The
amounts of derivative financial assets and
liabilities are disclosed in note 24 above.

At the date of end of the reporting period, the
Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities
are stated at fair value, except for the items
stated as shown below.
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RUYUR R R 2 TR Financial instruments not measured at fair
value

(1) TEI (6315 1700 ) [r] S Je 42 i (1) Balances and placements with banks and
BRI monetary authority
B B B AT K 2 4 o A B R The fair values of floating rate placements
T EM % o EBFRZ A REM and overnight deposits are their carrying
WEEWHE A RITHEZ B amounts. While the fair value of fixed
SRBERZEXAZIYAZH interest placements are based on the
R EE B o R IR S AR K discounted cash flows using the prevailing
B —ERBEN > MEAFZA money-market interest rates and their
SR 8 A B BR T A 45 - remaining period up to the date of

maturity, the estimated fair values are
approximately equal to their carrying
values since all such placements are due in
less than one year.

2) FFE - Bk kB 551 (2)  Loan, advances and trade bills
BN B A 5 mE Loans, advances and trade finance are net
BrIRE R R IR - Br— A& 5 of allowances for impairment. All items,
%R KRB i HEE except for a very insignificant portion of
R B o A DM HE loans and advances to customers, bear
LR RAE AR B KE S interest at a floating rate. The Group has
HRZAREAE R LN assessed the of fair value loan, advances
AREERIRHAEEAFEAEKRE and trade bills, after taking into account
Ho the relevant market interest rates, and

has noted that the total fair value is not
materially different from the total carrying

value.
3) HEAHHRE (3)  Held-to-maturity investments
HEFWAREZ A REEEE The fair values of the held-to-maturity
DL e R o investments are directly quoted from the
market.

W i AR AR A
e £ Ik 3 SERLE e L k2

Carrying Unrecognised
value Fair value gain

2009 2009 2009

WP T L WIT L WL
MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000

HEFMHRE Held-to-maturity investments 3,013,960 3,014,628 668
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28.
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Wi RAfi R B
SERAE ZEIAE e 2282

Carrying Unrecognised

value Fair value gain

2008 2008 2008

WIWT L WIT L WL

MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000

HEIMHRE Held-to-maturity investments 1,267,081 1,287,296 20,215

4)  FFPRIFEGH

I WESE B A 2 7 B A AR S A B
ZAREAE R IR A o WA
W5 WA 2 % P R 3652 B A7 K
Z oy Su MR A M R A% 208 B ORI
AR ) AR BB i
B W N ML SRR Z B H i
H 5 9 AR B A — 4 LA
Fi A RE BB i AR

(5) HAbEEREMA LR

9 N LAt A A L At B BT A
DS SRR A W R S
MR AT R -

Ho i 48
BN MBHRERETEHEZ2BEESI
T i bk COARBR M 2.1 Btk 2 22 RE B A 48

W e B> AT HORS M O B TR 40 > A
HGHWZEF )R -

S5 i Z Ak i

AMBHS OR F-FEZH P AAKE
FE A R AT

27.

28.

(4)  Deposits from customers and other banks

The estimated fair value of deposits and
balances with no stated maturity and those
bearing a floating rate of interest are their
carrying amounts. The fair value of fixed
interest-bearing deposits from customers
and other banks without quoted market
price is based on discounted cash flows
using the interest rates for new debts with
similar remaining maturity and, since
their maturity is normally less than one
year from the end of the reporting period,
their fair values are approximately equal

to their carrying values.
(5)  Other assets and other liabilities

The estimated fair value of the other assets
and other liabilities, which are normally
non-interest bearing, is their carrying

value.
Comparatives Amounts

During the year, the classification and presentation
of certain items and balances in the financial
statements have been revised according to the basis
of presentation as stated in note 2.1. Accordingly,
certain comparative amounts have been reclassified to

conform with the current presentation.
Approval of the Financial Statements

The financial statements were approved and authorised
for issue by the board of directors on 26 March 2010.
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P Offices

o5 TR SRAT ORI ) ey A R ]

VR ARG % 555 9%

PR E H R 3E TER (UM ) ol 18 4
TEWH ¢ 2855 5222 B : 2857 0758

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Macau) Limited
18/F, ICBC Tower, Macau Landmark,

555 Avenida da Amizade, Macau

Tel: 2855 5222 Facsimile: 2857 0758

TSR (WP ) B B4 A B2 ] ICBC (Macau) Capital Limited
WP AR R B 3 555 5% 19/F, ICBC Tower, Macau Landmark,

PR B MR B AR (PR ) oty 19 18
EEh 1 28555222 B : 8398 2360

555 Avenida da Amizade, Macau
Tel: 2855 5222 Facsimile: 2857 0758

AR (PP ) 38 pRHE 445 BB A PR 2 )
WP A KBS 3 555 5%

TR E b R Y5 AR (W) ol 19 8
TEHE ¢ 28555222 fHEL : 2878 0678

ICBC(Macau) Pension Fund Management Co. Limited
19/F, ICBC Tower, Macau Landmark,

555 Avenida da Amizade, Macau

Tel: 2855 5222 Facsimile: 2878 0678

PG A ]
FWTED — Y\ B RS K+ =4
FEEE ¢ 2165 6533 83 = 2851 7266

Seng Heng Development Co Ltd

13/F Guangdong Investment Tower,

148 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong
Tel: 2165 6533 Facsimile: 2851 7266

Vg ) Branches
B AT Landmark Main Branch
LT R A R R 1% 555 5% 18/F, ICBC Tower, Macau Landmark,

555 Avenida da Amizade, Macau
Tel: 8398 2885 Facsimile: 8398 2880

L P bR AR (PR ) oty 184
TEHE : 8398 2885 B : 8398 2880

BES T Dynasty Branch
LT R R A S 393 437 9% Alm. Dr. Carlos d’Assumpcao, No. 393-437,

LR R B M Edf. Dynasty Plaza, Macau

TEWhH : 8397 6102 fH3 : 2875 5199 Tel: 8397 6102 Facsimile: 2875 5199
W4T Hotel Lisboa Branch

TR A RE KBS A T ) b R Av. da Amizade S/N Hotel Lisboa, R/C, Macau

EEE 1 8398 2268 B : 2856 2536 Tel: 8398 2268 Facsimile: 2856 2536

R T
VR e RS % 351 5%
TEHE : 8398 2288 B : 2833 9077

s (EB &) 4T
THLFY) T 8 K S I 490 % T Bl 67 K M Al
TEFE 2871 0068 fHEL : 2871 0066

PG (Wan Keng) Branch
351, Av. da Praia Grande, R/C, Macau
Tel: 8398 2288 Facsimile: 2833 9077

PG (Montepio) Branch

Ave. da Praia Grande

490 Edf. Montepio

R/C, Macau

Tel: 2871 0068 Facsimile: 2871 0066
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BWBRNT Areia Preta Branch
PR YD BR AR KB R M B b R AD-AG fifi Av. de Venceslau de Morais, Edf. Lei Fung Kok, R/C,
EHE : 8398 2308 B : 2853 1660 AD-AG, Macau

Tel: 8398 2308 Facsimile: 2853 1660

=i Toi San Branch
TR B [ KB % 64 SR TR M K A E B AL T Istmo de Ferreira do Amaral No. 64,
TEWhH © 2823 8668 B : 2823 8666 Edf. I Nam, R/C, Loja A-B, Macau

Tel: 2823 8668 Facsimile: 2823 8666

S B (RS ) 4T San Ma Lou (Largo do Senado) Branch
WG B 257 2 263 SR b A Avenida de Almeida Ribeiro Nos 257-263, Macau
TEWhH ¢ 2838 9303 fH3 2 2838 9202 Tel: 2838 9303 Facsimile: 2838 9202

B s CER ) 44T San Ma Lou (Nova Comercio) Branch
TR R e 586 9% 586, Av. da Almeida Ribeiro, R/C, Macau

TG ¢ 8398 2298 fEEL : 2892 2440 Tel: 8398 2298 Facsimile: 2892 2440

* AL A AT Hung Kai Si Branch

TP R LR 117-119 58k RIEH T A i Avenida de Horta e Costa No. 117-119,

TEAG ¢ 2821 6128 B : 2821 6163 Edificio Veng Seng, R/C “A”, Macau

Tel: 2821 6128 Facsimile: 2821 6163

W 4347 K 389 5% Hoi Wan Branch
WM kA B AL G Rua de Tai Lin No. 389,
TG 2886 8600 B3 = 2886 8613 Pou Long Fa Un, R/C,

“G”, Taipa, Macau
Tel: 2886 8600 Facsimile: 2886 8613

BRI N 54T Venetian Branch

TR O B L R K R I Shop No. 2126, The Grand Canal Shoppes,
P S8 35T N JREAB AR A3 YRl B 4 v o0 2126 il The Venetian Macao Resort Hotel,

TG © 2882 8212 fHIL : 2882 8378 Baia de Nossa Senhora de Esperanca,

Estrada da Cotai, Macau
Tel: 2882 8212 Facsimile: 2882 8378

Vb WAL B 4 AT Ferry Terminal Branch
LY g 34 B v VRIS B A BE K32 1005B = Shop Unit 1005B, 1 Piso do Terminal do Porto Exterior,
EHE : 8398 2408 L : 2872 6497 Macau

Tel: 8398 2408 Facsimile: 2872 6497

W 20104573488
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S R EE O Wealth Management Centre (Dynasty Plaza)
W R R B AR 5 393-437 9% Alm. Dr. Carlos D’ Assumpcao No. 393-437, 1° andar,

5L R 5 A — A Edf. Dynasty Plaza, Macau

Tel: 8397 6288 Tel: 8397 6288

Fax: 8397 6633 Fax: 8397 6633

A NN g Wealth Management Centre (Venetian)

WAL i o R AP R KR Shop No. 2126, The Grand Canal Shoppes,

WP IR 00 N JEE AR 3 YT S 4 0 2126 i The Venetian Macao Resort Hotel,

Tel: 8397 6288 Baia de Nossa Senhora de Esperance, Estrada da Cotai, Macau
Fax: 2882 8378 Tel: 8397 6288

Fax: 2882 8378

5 g B Wealth Management Centre (Hoi Wan)

TR Ok AR HAT 389 SR BIFEAE I ML T G PE Rua de Tai Lin No. 389, Pou Long Fa Un, R/C “G”,
Tel: 8397 6822 Taipa, Macau

Fax: 2886 8613 Tel: 8397 6822

Fax: 2886 8613

B B 0B A A BE © www.icbe.com.mo Internet website: www.ichc.com.mo
(BFHATEAMIL) (E-banking login address)
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TR (JRPY) v 1848

E55  (853) 28555222 {HH : (853) 2857 0758

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Macau) Limited
18/F, ICBC Tower, Macau Landmark,

555 Avenida da Amizade, Macau

Tel: (853) 2855 5222 Fax: (853) 2857 0758

http://www.icbc.com.mo
e-mail: webmaster@icbc.com.mo
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